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ighlights for the Year 2017
E-+tERE

Revenue increased 9.8% to HK$1,863.6 million (2016: HK$1,698.0
million).

Gross profit decreased 2.7% to HK$442.0 million (2016: HK$454.2
million).

Gross profit margin decreased 3.1 percentage points to 23.7% (2016:
26.8%).

Operating profit is HK$141.7 million (2016: HK$123.1 million) and the
profit for the year is HK$108.8 million (2016: HK$149.1 million).

To provide better information to the readers of the financial statements,
additional financial information is presented below:

W AL AN9.8% E1,863.6 B E B T(=F
— N 1,6980B8BBT) °

EFRAL27%E4020BEB T (ZZ—
NEE ASA2BE BB IT) ©

EMERFLINEED B E237% (- F
— N 26.8%) °

KERFBINTEEST(ZFT— X
FIB1EEBL)RAFERF A
1088E BB L(ZE—ARF:149.18 8
W) °

RAMBEHRR EERBETZER
MMz BERZIMT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Including Excluding
fair value gains fair value gains
B N
NSBEL E N ENE
HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEAT BEET
Operating profit 18 &g A 141.7 123.1 1231
Profit for the year EE R 108.8 149.1 82.1
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 782 B % A A J&E 1 i 7 108.9 157.4 90.4
Basic earnings per share attributable to owners 7K 2 T B A JE15 G IR E AR

of the Company (HK cents) AF B 15.1 222 12.8

# This non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles) financial
information is presented as additional information to readers.

A proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2017 of HK5.0 cents per share of the Company (the “Share”) was
recommended, together with the interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per
Share, representing a total of HK7.0 cents per Share (2016: HK6.0 cents
per Share (excluding special dividend)) and the dividend payout ratio of
46.4% (2016: 46.9% (excluding fair value gains)).
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Five Years Financial Summary
EEMBEHRE

Years ended 31 December
HBE+-A=+—RLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—T-=fF —E-QmF —FT-1F FT-RF B-+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FTHT
Revenue WA 1,683,999 1,626,016 1,710,885 1,698,005 1,863,559
Profit/(loss) before income tax REtFr SR A E A, (EE) 63,064 78,216 (199,299) 191,439 143,248
Income tax expenses FTis i~ (27,984) (19,483) (26,839) (42,355) (34,408)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHEF, (BB) 35,080 58,733 (226,138) 149,084 108,840
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
REEE EmkE&®RE
As at 31 December
R+=B=+-8H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-=F C—ZE-NF E-hF ZE—IF —E—+EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHT FTHT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMBEE 843,195 828,410 546,604 331,064 380,180
Current assets mENEE 1,055,629 1,094,901 1,075,041 1,322,931 1,269,650
Total assets BERE 1,898,824 1,923,311 1,621,645 1,653,995 1,649,380
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEzRkEE
Total equity 48 25 1,272,868 1,296,392 1,011,378 975,036 1,060,440
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 38,356 31,526 22,179 2,612 2,792
Current liabilities mEBaE 587,600 595,393 588,088 676,347 586,598
Total liabilities BEBE 625,956 626,919 610,267 678,959 589,390
Total equity and liabilities wERRAaE 1,898,824 1,923,311 1,621,645 1,653,995 1,649,830
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Key Shareholder Value Indices
TERREEER

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company

Revenue
ON KAREE AEIEER, (E8)
1,863.6
16840 g6 /109 16980 108.9
#
90.4
84.9%
S S
Q| Q)
S =5 63.3
Ea E s
Clm Cio 40.0
ag a5
! j
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
= —TNF —T-FF —T—F ZB—tF —E=F —T-NF —T—AF —TAF ZB—tF
Years Years
FE FE
Basic earnings per Share attributable to owners Dividend per Share
of the Company BREKRE
ARBEEANELEERERET
15.1
12.8* B
11.5%
§= - 5=
M3 M
2= 5.7 T
7.0
> 35 45 5.0 E 1
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—R-=F —TMF —F-8F —T—RF ZB—+tF —F-=F —F-NF _F—hF —T— R F =B—+F
Years Years
FE FE
Gearing ratio
BEEAELXR
5.5
- 3.1
° 25 &0
2.1
I l
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
“T-=F “2-MF ~F-[F -T-AF —¥—tF
Years
=

* Before recognition of significant non-recurring items
EREAIEEHRA A

# Excluding fair value gains
TeEATFERE
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Key Shareholder Value Indices (Continued)
TERREEER(E)

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
2= —ET-mF ZET-RF ZE—RF ZE—tF%
Revenue (HK$ million) WA(BEEET) 1,684.0 1,626.0 1,710.9 1,698.0 1,863.6
% Change % & &) (0.1)% (3.4)% 5.2% -0.8% 9.8%
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners AAREAR AEERF
of the Company (HK$ million) (BB (B8ET) 40.0 63.3 84.9% 90.4# 108.9
% Change % B &) (46.9)% 58.1% 34.1% 6.5% 20.5%
Basic earnings per Share attributable to 2 X 7] % A A & 15 & &
owners of the Company (HK cents) EARBF (GBI 5.7 9.1 11.5% 12.8# 15.1
% Change % & &) (50.0)% 59.6% 26.4% 11.3% 18.0%
Dividend per Share (HK cents) BRI E GBI 35 45 5.0 26.0 7.0
% Change % B E 0.0% 28.6% 11.1% 420.0% (73.1)%
Gearing ratio (%) BEBELLR(%) 3.1% 2.5% 5.5% 2.7% 2.1%

*  Before recognition of significant non-recurring items

HREAFEE AR
#  Excluding fair value gains

TEEAFEYEE
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Chairman’s
Statement

EE®RE



Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the audited
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Our Group was developed with steady and firm footsteps in 2017 benefited
by the remarkable global economic recovery under the relatively stable
international political environment and the positive sentiment in global stock
market. As a result of the optimistic economic environment the rejuvenated
global tourism industry was rebounded with a strong momentum in 2017.

Hospitality supplies business, the Group’s core business segment, achieved a
satisfactory performance in 2017 benefited from the revitalised tourism
industry and boosted up the Group’s overall revenue. As a result, the Group
recorded an overall revenue of HK$1,863.6 million, indicating a 9.8% year-
on-year increase compared to 2016. However, the Group still managed to
maintain a relatively downturn in gross profit of HK$442.0 million (2016:
HK$454.2 million) which was due to the aggressive pricing strategy on
expanding our client network. The overall gross profit margin also descended
by 3.1 percentage point to 23.7% (2016: 26.8%).

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
EEHRE (B)

The profit attributable to owners of the Company stood at HK$108.9 million
(2016: HK$157.4 million), recorded a decrease during 2017. Based on the
financial performance in 2017, a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per Share is
pleased to be suggested by the board of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company (the “Board”), together with the interim dividend of HK2.0 cents
per Share, making a total annual dividend of HK7.0 cents per Share (2016:
HK6.0 cents per Share (excluding special dividend)), with a dividend payout
ratio of 46.4% (2016: 46.9% (excluding fair value gains)).

Under the optimistic sentiment of the global tourism industry in 2017, the
revenue of hospitality supplies business received a significantly rebound
through a competitive pricing strategy to increase the number of customer
orders. The satisfactory performance in the PRC, Hong Kong, Europe and
other Asia Pacific regions in 2017 led the growth of revenue in the hospitality
supplies business segment. Considering that China region obtains a ranking
of one of the top greatest tourism arrivals in the worldwide according to the
latest UN World Tourism Organization (“UNWTQO") Tourism Highlight 2017,
the Group pays intensive effort on the business in that region by optimising
the well-developed customer network and enhancing cost efficiency.

At the same time, the Group is eager to extend clientele worldwide. To utilise
the initiatives of “Belt and Road” Policy, the Group captured the opportunity
to step towards the Southeast Asia market through the acquisition of new
product line in the Kingdom of Cambodia (“Cambodia”). The Group expected
for a better managed production process in Cambodia in order to cater for
the potential growth in the Group’s hospitality business.

Moreover, the Operating Supplies and Equipment (“OS&E") business, serving
as another key driver to boost up the revenue for hospitality supplies business,
will continue to pursue a robust and growth in the next financial year. The
Group expected this segment will be well-developed to become a major
contribution to the Group's revenue in future.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

RARMBABLEFNR - —tFHEBK
@ W A1089B BB L(ZF —/NF: 1574
BEEL) BRE_T—LtFHPBKRE &K
rAEF(EENe((EFg)RAEZRRE
KEAG B FR5.081l - ERP R EENK2.0
B FEBRBBEATRIOBWUW(ZZ—X
F:ER60BIWCIrBEERFRKRE)) Mk B8 =X
B46.4% (T — NEF 1 469% (T BIEAFE
Wrzs)) e

E_T-tF2RREENEERAT &
BHFUEERBENE,TEHE  ABK
HEMEBOHRAZSAERE —T—+L
FHE -FE BMNEEMDAMENRRRL
B HHAEHEREFNDBRAER R
EE A B SRR A A (B & Bt R iR A
BDOERFIREHE2017 KERETEME
KEZREPESREIFENHL 2 K
SEBBBLERTENEPMEKLIESK
Y REBBROEHBBEES -

RE  AEERIFZHEAZRES - BHA
[~ — BB AREE BN AR
EE(RAENOFLES LREDENR
MEMS . ARBEBETARS A EL D
IR ERIE 0 A AR R R 7 2 B
5 -

BN ERRSBEEHEREBEANS —
TERR 2ERRLARBIE2ERMER
BDEBBERT - HFEEEERRDIE
R-AKEBHUEIPBENARERTEL
REEBRANET2RIR -



Regarding the loss management, since the market proportion of traditional
retail was diminished by the continuous escalation of the online retail market
proportion in the PRC, the Group is inclined to continuously optimise our
management progress by narrowing down the costs in operation and
marketing promotion, in attempt to eliminate the loss making position. The
number of physical retail stores was 42 as at 31 December 2017.

Looking forward, global economy may embrace a further growth in 2018.
However, the Group will pay more attention to lower the risk of global
economic downturn due to the impact of the United States (“U.S.”) interest
rate in a rising schedule and Brexit negotiations of the United Kingdom.
Moreover, the unstable situation on the Korean Peninsula and the relation
between China and the U.S. will cause unforeseeable impact on the global
economy. To overcome the potential risks of the market, the Group will seize
all the opportunities with an ultimate aim to generate greater returns to
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

On behalf of the Board, | would be honored to express my sincere gratitude
to all Shareholders, business partners and our dedicated, cautious and
conscientious employees and management for their continued loyalty,
professionalism and contribution to the Group.

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEF WK (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total revenue recorded an increase
of 9.8% to approximately HK$1,863.6 million compared with HK$1,698.0
million in 2016 as a result of the global economy recovery. The hospitality
supplies business, the core business of the Group, displayed prominent
contribution with a revenue of HK$1,847.6 million for the year under review,
which represented 99.1% of the Group’s total revenue. The retail business
revenue stood at HK$16.0 million, comprising 0.9% of the total revenue.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2017 was HK$108.9 million (for the year ended 31 December 2016:
HK$157.4 million).

Basic earnings per Share attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was HK15.1 cents (for the year ended 31
December 2016: HK22.2 cents).

Gross profit margin decreased 3.1 percentage points to 23.7% from 26.8%
in the prior year due to the aggressive pricing strategy to increase the market
share.

Bt 7% B B8

BHE-_Z—tF+-A=+—HBLEE" &
RIRIRAEEEE - BIRARBIEIRI8%E L
1,863.6 B BB IL(ZZT—/RF :1,69808 &85
) REIEFERN BEHRERER(BEAE
ErzoEB BEREELER WA K1,847.6
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HE-Z—+H&+-"A=+—HIEFEE &K
NEEEANELRERERAFN B15.180(FH
EZE-RNFT_A=+—HILFE: 2228
i) -

EMEBH EF68%WMA3NERT D B E
23.7% - It T 58 A A LA BUE (B SR RS 38 A0 T 35
1358 -

ARERERAERAR —T—+tFFK 13



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENW R (&)

The Board has resolved to propose a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per Share
for the year ended 31 December 2017. A sum of the interim and year-end
dividends is expected to be HK7.0 cents per Share (2016: HK6.0 cents per
Share (excluding special dividend)). The proposed final dividend is subject to
approval at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 30
May 2018 ("AGM").

Set out below are the consolidated key financial highlights of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017:

EERELRRERREBEE_ZT—LF+ -8
=St —BLEFERERAREESR.08M -
BEHPHRFREEGAFFAER7.0EM(Z
Z-RF: B8R OBM(TRERHIKRE)) -
BEAPREAGENR-_Z-NFRA=T
BETHNAAFARREFAE (RREBEFAX
) EHAERTAEE -

AEBBE-_T—tEtFt-_A=+—HLF
EHEEIEMBHEHIINT

Year ended 31 December

BE+tZA=+—-BLEFE

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E-REF
HKS$ million HK$ million % Change
BEBT BEET SEHEDL
Revenue A 1,863.6 1,698.0 9.8%
Gross profit EF 442.0 4542 2.7Y%
Profit attributable to owners ViN/NEIE SN
of the Company & 15 % F 108.9 157.4 (30.8)%
Net asset value BEFE 1,060.4 975.0 8.8%
Basic earnings per Share attributable KRB AEEER
to owners of the Company (HK cents) EARBEF GEMW) 15.1 22.2 (32.0)%
Diluted earnings per Share attributable AKAREEAEBEER
to owners of the Company (HK cents) BE AR OB 14.9 21.9 (32.0)%

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group achieved a satisfactory performance in overall revenue in the
whole year of 2017 with core contribution of the hospitality supplies business
benefited from the global economy recovery. The International Monetary
Fund recorded that global economic growth increased 3.7% in 2017 due to a
pickup in manufacturing and trade, rising market confidence and stabilising
commodity prices. As the second largest economy, China recorded a satisfying
Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) expansion to 6.9% in the year of 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The total revenue of the Group increased by 9.8% to HK$1,863.6 million
during the year ended 31 December 2017 (for the year ended 31 December
2016: HK$1,698.0 million) due to promising performances in several major
regions of the Group's hospitality supplies business. As the key driver of the
revenue of the Group, the hospitality supplies business recorded a relative
growth especially in the PRC and Hong Kong which were fueled by China’s
economic growth and the Group’s market gains from high and mid-level
hotels. The hospitality supplies business remained as the key contributors to
the overall revenue of the Group, comprising 99.1% to the Group revenue.
Under the optimised resources allocation, profit attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$108.9 million (for the year ended 31 December 2016:
HK$157.4 million), representing 30.8% decrease as compared to prior year.

However, the gross profit recorded a 2.7% decrease to HK$442.0 million over
the year of 2017 (for the year ended 31 December 2016: HK$454.2 million)
and the gross profit margin down to 23.7% (for the year ended 31 December
2016: 26.8%). The fluctuation of both gross profit and profit margin was due
to our aggressive pricing strategy in attempt to attract more market share. On
the other hand, even though the suffering from loss of retail business
segment was narrowed down under the cost control strategy, the aggressive
growth in online retail was the largest hinder on the recovery of traditional
retail market.

Hospitality Supplies Business

According to the latest UNWTO World Tourism Barometer, international
tourist arrivals worldwide grew by 7% during the year of 2017 compared to
last year to reach a total of 1,322 million, representing the strongest result in
the seven years. International arrivals in Asia and the Pacific were up 6%,
while international arrivals in North America grew by 2%, which compared to
remarkable growth up to 8% in Europe was not an outstanding performance.

Under the firm recovery of global tourism, the core hospitality supplies
business contributed a satisfactory result of the Group's revenue. The revenue
of the Group's hospitality supplies segment stood at HK$1,847.6 million,
representing an increase of 10.9% when compared to 2016 (for the year
ended 31 December 2016: HK$1,665.9 million). This was mainly attributable
to the contribution from the satisfactory performance in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Europe and other Asia Pacific regions. The gross profit of the hospitality
supplies business achieved HK$430.4 million, representing 5.7% decrease
when compared to last year (for the year ended 31 December 20716:
HK$456.4 million). The gross profit margin of the segment decreased 4.1
percentage point to 23.3% (for the year ended 31 December 2016: 27.4%).
This was mainly due to the fierce competition among global hospitality
supplies sector, as well as a relatively aggressive pricing strategy adopted by
the Group to attract more customers and generate additional sales.

EEEF WK (&)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The OS&E business, cultivated since the second half of 2014 continued its
significant expansion by achieving a growth of 30.6% to HK$117.3 million in
revenue in the year of 2017 (for the year ended 31 December 2016: HK$89.8
million). Though still accounting for a relatively small proportion of the
hospitality supplies segment, OS&E business expanded its clientele base
among both high and mid-level hotels. The global economic recovery also
boosted the travel sentiment which resulted in an incremental trend of
demand for the Group’s OS&E business.

Breaking things down, revenue from the PRC and Hong Kong, which
altogether remains the Group's key focus market on hospitality supplies
business, increased by 15.8% and 14.3% respectively to HK$602.4 million
and HK$300.2 million for the year ended of 31 December 2017 (for the year
ended 31 December 2016: HK$520.0 million and HK$262.6 million
respectively). It accounted for 32.6% and 16.2% of the total revenue of
hospitality supplies business respectively. The economic recovery in the PRC
led to increasing disposable incomes and intriguing the optimistic purchasing
sentiment during China inbound travel.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the second largest business region of
the Group’s hospitality supplies business, North America, recorded a revenue
of HK$404.0 million (for the year ended 31 December 2016: HK$402.3
million), accounted for 21.9% (2016: 24.1%) of the hospitality supplies
segment revenue, followed by Europe which registered a revenue of
HK$198.1 million (for the year ended 31 December 2016: HK$174.4 million)
and 10.7% (2016: 10.5%) of the segment revenue for the year under review.
Regarding other Asia Pacific market, it recorded a revenue of HK$287.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 (for the year ended 31
December 2016: HK$251.8 million) which comprised 15.6% (2016: 15.1%)
of the hospitality supplies segment revenue. For Australia market, it recorded
a revenue of HK$51.3 million for the year under review (for the year ended 31
December 2016: HK$49.8 million), representing 2.8% (2016: 3.0%) of the
hospitality supplies segment revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Revenue by geographical location
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To supplement the growth of the hospitality supplies business, the Group
planned to acquire land and buildings for production and a manufacturing
company in Cambodia. Management expects that it will provide a relatively
lower cost on manpower and manufacturing overhead to boost up
productivity and cost efficiency of the Group’s hospitality supplies business.

The new production line specialised in the manufacturing process for airline
operators and hotels with multiple products to upgrade entire efficiency and
enlarge potential capacity. As a result of the start of new factory, the Group
will pursue the opportunities to capture the potential customer network in
Cambodia as well as the countries nearby.

Retail business

During the year of 2017, the Group retail business in PRC market still
struggled along due to the strong competition including but not limited to the
aggressively growth of online sales. As the result that younger generation
("Generation Z") in the PRC tremendously shifted their consuming priorities
from offline to online, the traditional retail market slumped and struggled
with the weak market sentiment.

According to China’s National Bureau of Statistics, China’s online sales
dramatically surged a year-on-year growth of 32.2% in the year of 2017. The
Group's retail business recorded a segment profit before income tax of
HK$1.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 (for the year ended 31
December 2016: segment loss before income tax of HK$37.5 million). The
number of the PRC retail chain outlets was 42 as at 31 December 2017 (as at
31 December 2016: 387).
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During the year under review, the Group maintained its operation strategy to
retail business, such as limit marketing and promotion expenditure, which
contributes a further narrowed down of loss, comparing to previous financial
year.

PROSPECTS

According to International Monetary Fund'’s forecasts, global growth for the
coming year is at 3.9% with 2 percentage points increase. The recovery of
economy has led the strong momentum of the international tourism industry
and the experts keep an optimistic view in 2018. According to UNWTO Panel
of Tourism Experts Confidence Index, the current strong momentum of
international tourism, led by European, is expected to continue the escalation
in the coming year.

In a relatively stable global economic environment, looking ahead,
management of the Group maintains an optimistic stance towards the
business conditions of the year of 2018 and focusing the business in Asia
region, especially in the PRC and Hong Kong, with a steady expanding trend
travel market is expected to maintain continuous growth.

Considering the long-term gross profit growth, the Group adopts a new
production facilities in Cambodia for a satisfying cost efficiency in manpower
and manufacturing overhead, besides the existing product line in Shenzhen,
Guangdong, the PRC. The Group is optimistic that it will strengthen the
competitiveness of the Group and benefit our hospitality customers as a
whole. Moreover, the OS&E business is expected to be one of the key drivers
of the Group's revenue in target of an outstanding result.

Given the aggressive growth of online sales in the PRC region, the dominant
of e-commerce as a vast and complex ecosystem, the Group will continue
executing conservative strategies to maintain its retail business while keep
exploring a better financial performance of this segment.

The Group will continue to maintain flexible strategies to pursue more
opportunities and enhance our market proportion in the hospitality supplies
business while allocating resources in different business segments to capture
a fruitful result in the coming year.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION

On 21 October 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Ming Fai
Holdings Limited, entered into (i) a share sale and purchase agreement and (ii)
a land and building sale and purchase agreement with independent third
parties in relation to (i) the acquisition of the entire issued share capital in, and
the shareholders’ loan due by, the target company, which is registered under
the laws of Cambodia (the “Share Acquisition”); and (i) the acquisition of a
land parcel and the properties on that land parcel located in Cambodia (the
“Land Acquisition”), respectively. The consideration for the Share Acquisition
and the Land Acquisition is US$3,500,000 and US$3,500,000 respectively.

Details of the Share Acquisition and the Land Acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 22 October 2017 and 19 January
2018.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's cash and cash equivalents amounted to
HK$367.8 million (as at 31 December 2016: HK$508.6 million).

In September and October 2015, the Group obtained two Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") denominated mortgage loans and certain banking facilities, which
bore interest at the higher of 1.7% per annum over one-month HIBOR or the
cost to the bank of funding the facilities, for acquiring certain properties in
Hong Kong. These properties were pledged against the mortgage loans and
certain banking facilities and included in property, plant and equipment in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, with net carrying value of
approximately HK$52.4 million as at 31 December 2017 (as at 31 December
2016: HK$54.7 million). As at 31
borrowings of these mortgage loans and facilities amounted to approximately
HK$16.5 million (as at 31 December 2016: approximately HK$18.5 million).

December 2017, the outstanding

In October 2015, the Group obtained a HK$ denominated loan which bore
interest at 1.7% per annum over one-month HIBOR for its working capital.
The banking facilities were secured by property, plant and equipment in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, with net carrying value of
approximately HK$3.6 million as at 31 December 2017 (as at 31 December
2016: HK$4.1 million). As at 31 December 2017, the outstanding borrowing
of this facility amounted to approximately HK$5.7 million (as at 31 December
2016: approximately HK$7.7 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Details of the borrowings are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2017, calculated on the basis of
borrowings over total equity, was 2.1% as compared with 2.7% as at 31
December 2016.

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi (“RMB"”). The Group currently
does not deploy a foreign currency hedging policy.

The Group primarily sourced its raw materials in the PRC. The related currency
exposure with respect to RMB is managed through increasing sales
denominated in the same currency.

With the current level of cash and cash equivalents as well as available
banking facilities, the Group’s liquidity position remains strong and has
sufficient financial resources to meet its current working capital requirement
and future expansion.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, certain subsidiaries of the Company pledged assets
with aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$56.1 million (as at 31
December 2016: approximately HK$58.8 million) to secure drawn bank
borrowings.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS, OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the capital commitments and operating lease commitments are set
out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. The Group has no
material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2017.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2017, the total number of employees of the Group was
approximately 3,700 and the employee benefit expenses including Directors’
emoluments were approximately HK$378.6 million. The Group offers a
comprehensive remuneration package which is reviewed by management on
a regular basis. The Group also invests in continuing education and training
programs for its management staff and other employees with a view to
constantly upgrading their skills and knowledge.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Group values employees as our most valuable assets and believes effective
employee engagement is an integral part of business success. In this context,
effective communication with employees at all levels is highly valued with the
ultimate goal to enhance the efficiency in providing quality service to the
customers. The Group also has Commendation Annual Award Scheme to
motivate its employees and recognise their outstanding performance.

Corporate Social Responsibilities

The Group is committed to the principle of sustainable development and fulfill
corporate social responsibilities (“CSR”) by applying commercial morality,
being good to people and protecting our environment.

The Group sets environmental policies and complies with internationally
certified environmental management systems and standards, such as
International Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO”) 14001:2004 and Hong
Kong Green Mark Certification Scheme.

Being one of the world’s leading hotel amenities suppliers, our Group actively
concerns environmental protection. We are committed to building an
environmental-friendly corporation that devotes to conserving natural
resources. We endeavor to minimise our environmental impact by reducing
the consumption of energy and natural resources in our manufacture and
design of products, saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office
supplies and other materials. We choose suppliers who can meet our
environmental protection requirements. We also encourage employees to
switch off all computers and office equipment, electrical and air-conditioner
at the end of each working day. Besides, since 2015, our Group has started
the cooperation with and make donation to Soap Cycling, a non-profit
organisation based in Hong Kong engaging in collecting, sanitising and
recycling slightly used soaps. These life-saving items are then distributed to
underprivileged families and schools in disadvantaged communities around
the world, particularly in Asia. Moreover, during the year, the Group has
continued to develop strategies to monitor and manage emission contributors
usage in all aspects of the facility. The Group also continues to engage in
charitable activities.

The Group believes that CSR is not just about philanthropy, but also a
responsibility towards the community and being able to provide a good
platform to contribute in any way that is meaningful, fulfilling and sustainable.
CSR will remain a prominent feature in the Group's agenda, and
environmental management is always an integral part of the Group's business
planning and daily operations.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREBAEBZBEHFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHING Chi Fai, aged 56, is an executive Director and chairman of the
Company. He is the chairman of the Nomination Committee, the Executive
Committee and the Investment Committee of the Company. He is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. CHING Chi Fai
is also a founder of the Group. He has been responsible for sales and
marketing, production of our products and the formulation of the overall
corporate direction and business strategies of our Group. Mr. CHING Chi Fai
has over 20 years of experience in the hospitality amenity industry. Mr. CHING
Chi Keung is a brother of Mr. CHING Chi Fai and Mr. CHING Tsun Wabh is the
son of Mr. CHING Chi Fai.

Mr. CHING Chi Keung, aged 53, is an executive Director. He is a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company. Mr. CHING Chi Keung is also a
founder of the Group. He has been responsible for human resources and
administrative matters. Mr. CHING Chi Keung has over 20 years of experience
in the hospitality amenity industry. Mr. CHING Chi Fai is a brother of Mr.
CHING Chi Keung and Mr. CHING Tsun Wabh is a nephew of Mr. CHING Chi
Keung.

Mr. LIU Zigang, aged 52, is an executive Director. He is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. Mr. LIU has been responsible for sales
and marketing since he joined our Group in May 1995. He oversees direct
sales in the Greater China Region as well as the Southeast Asia markets. Mr.
LIU has over 20 years of experience in the hospitality amenity industry. Mr. LIU
holds a diploma from Shenzhen University, the PRC. Mr. LIU completed a
course on International Business Management of Tsinghua University
organised by Yangtze Delta Region Institute of Tsinghua University, the PRC.

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah, aged 36, is an executive Director and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company. He is currently the business
development director of the Company. He graduated in Seneca College
Toronto of Canada in marketing administration in 2003. He joined the Group
since 2006 to assist in production and has been actively involved in both the
business and product development of the Group. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah has
extensive experience in the hospitality amenity industry. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah
is the son of Mr. CHING Chi Fai and a nephew of Mr. CHING Chi Keung.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung, aged 45, is an executive Director, the chief
financial officer and the company secretary of the Company. He is also a
member of the Executive Committee and the Investment Committee of the
Company. He joined the Group in July 2010 and he is responsible for finance
and accounting matters. He has over 20 years of experience in accounting
and financial management. He holds a bachelor degree in Accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA"). Mr. KEUNG is an independent
non-executive director of Milestone Builder Holdings Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching, aged 50, is a non-executive Director. Ms. CHAN was
responsible for sales and marketing when she joined our Group in 1995 and
she oversaw export sales to overseas markets when she acted as an executive
Director from 2007 to 2015. Ms. CHAN has over 20 years of experience in the
hospitality amenity industry. Prior to joining our Group, she worked in several
companies engaged in hospitality amenity business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan, aged 63, is an independent non-executive
Director since 2007. He is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. HUNG has over 20
years of senior management experience in managing hotel operations and
hotel investments. In 1992, he was a deputy managing director of Top Glory
International Holdings Limited (“Top Glory”), a former Hong Kong listed
company which was privatised in August 2003 and acted as its executive
director from July 1997 to January 2001. During the period with Top Glory,
Mr. HUNG assisted Top Glory to develop and manage hotels/resorts. He
resigned from such positions due to the restructuring of Top Glory (by its
holding company). In 2005, Mr. HUNG started a hotel development
consultancy service to work with various hotel developers and prestigious
hotel chains on design and project management.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace, aged 47, is an independent non-executive
Director since 2007. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Investment Committee of the Company. Mr. MA is a seasoned
accountant with extensive experience in risk and internal control. Mr. MA is a
Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) registered with the HKICPA, a fellow
member of the ACCA, a Certified Internal Auditor registered with the Institute
of Internal Auditors and holder of Certification of Control Self-Assessment of
the Institute of Internal Auditors. Mr. MA also holds various degrees including
Master of Science and Bachelor of Business Administration conferred by The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and Bachelor of Laws conferred by the
University of London.

Mr. NG Bo Kwong, aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director since
13 June 2013. He was a non-executive Director from 9 July 2007 to 31
December 2012. He is a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. NG has over 20 years of
management experience in different industries (including the hospitality
amenity industry). He is the chairman of the International Quality Service
Management Promotion Association (EFXEERFSEIRRE ) and a full
member of the Hong Kong Management Association (B8 &2 HE1%S). He
had assisted a number of medium to large sized enterprises in formulating
company development strategies and establishing management systems in
the areas of sales and marketing, human resources and production
management. Mr. NG is also a guest lecturer of Master of Business
Administration programs and senior executive development programs of
several universities. He had been a director of a number of non-listed
companies and is currently a director of Advance Management Consultants
Limited and Guangzhou Advance Cultural Events Limited. He received a
master degree of Business Administration from the University of East Asia and
a doctor degree of Philosophy in Business Administration from Tarlac State
University.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric, aged 41, is an independent non-executive Director
since 2016. He is also a member of the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company. He
graduated with Bachelor degree of Commerce in the University of New South
Wales, Australia in July 2000. He has been the managing director of Kin Hip
Metal & Plastic Factory, Limited and KINOX Trading Limited since 2006 whom
succeeded the family business from his father Mr. SUN Kai Lit Cliff, a former
independent non-executive Director. “KINOX"is a famous international quality
manufacturer of fashionable cookware, houseware, insulated beverage
servers, grills and electrical appliances in household and catering industries,
especially in European and American countries. Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric has
been involved in investing KINOX products and pioneering KINOX brand
exposure in emerging markets. Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric is the chairman of a
brand joint venture named Hong Kong Quiality Brands Alliance Limited (HKQBA)
(BB BERXER AT where he devotes his utmost in joining force with
the second and the third manufacturers’ generations with the aims of
enhancing local brand exposure. Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric is the honorary and
founding president of Youth Executive Council (5% E &) of Federation of
Hong Kong Industries (B8 T4 ) (“FHKI") which aimed to facilitate
communication platform for expertise exchange among young industrialists as
well as the founding Vice Chairman and Secretary General of Hong Kong
020 E-Commerce Federation (F#H020%E 7S E) stimulating
digitalisation and 020 business development of Hong Kong Industries. His
effort on social responsibility also dedicates to his positions of committee
member of FHKI Hong Kong Q-Mark Council (H&EE1ZE7%E) and
committee member of FHKI Pearl River Delta Council k=T ¥ E). Mr.
SUN Yung Tson Eric is the Chairman of Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers
Association Limited (B/58RBREMEmE AR A7) and the Vice Chairman of
The Hong Kong Exporters’ Association (&7 A &). Mr. SUN Yung Tson
Eric practices active roles in different public services in both Hong Kong and
China.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. CHAN Yick Ning, aged 55, is our research and development director.
Ms. CHAN is responsible for overseeing various aspects of our chemical
production such as chemical production quality control, research and
development of product formulations, the operations of the chemical and
microbiological laboratory, the performance of the senior chemists and
technicians, quality control and research and development. Ms. CHAN is also
our vice chairman of company compliance committee to provide the technical
expertise in vary aspects to ensure the regulatory compliance and product
safety. Ms. CHAN joined our Group in 2005 and has over 20 years of
experience in cosmetics production and laboratory operation. Ms. CHAN was
awarded a Master of Science degree from University of Warwick in 2013 and
a Diploma in Management Studies jointly by The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and Hong Kong Management Association in 1992. Ms. CHAN is
also a founder member and the President of Hong Kong Society of Cosmetic
Chemists, which is affiliate member of The International Federation Societies
of Cosmetic Chemists in the United States.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Directors of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited are pleased to present
their annual report together with the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the supply and manufacture of quality
amenity products and accessories to internationally recognised or branded
operators, and distribution and retail of the cosmetics products and fashion
accessories in the PRC. The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are
set forth in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 172 of this annual report.

The Board intend to strike a balance between maintaining sufficient capital to
grow our business and rewarding the Shareholders. The declaration and
payment of any dividends would be subject to the Board’s decision and any
final dividend for a financial year would be subject to the Shareholders’
approval. The decision to declare or to pay any dividend, and the amount of
any dividends, will depend on our earnings, financial condition, cash
requirements and availability, and any other factors the Board may consider
relevant. As these factors and the payment of dividends is at the discretion of
the Board, which reserves the right to change its plan on any future payment
of dividends.

During 2017, an interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per Share for the six months
ended 30 June 2017, amounting to a total dividend of approximately
HK$14,531,000 was paid on 6 October 2017, including dividend paid to
Shares held for the share award scheme ( the “Share Award Scheme").

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per
Share for the year ended 31 December 2017. Subject to the approval by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 30
May 2018, the final dividend will be paid on or around 19 June 2018 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 7 June 2018.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining the eligibility of the Shareholders to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 25
May 2018 to Wednesday, 30 May 2018 (both dates inclusive), during which
period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all documents in respect of transfers of Shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, 24 May 2018.

For ascertaining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 5 June 2018 to Thursday, 7 June 2018 (both dates inclusive), during
which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all documents in respect of transfers of Shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 4 June 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set
out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 8 to 11 and pages 12 to 21 respectively of this annual
report.

Analysis of key financial performance indicators

For details of the key financial performance indicators to the performance the
Group's business, please refer to “Five Years Financial Summary” on page 5
of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group

Risks pertaining to the reliance on direct sales customers
and distributors for the sale of products

Our hospitality products are sold either by direct sales to our customers of
mainly hotels and airline operators or to distributors supplying other end-
users. There is no assurance that such customers will continue to purchase or
maintain their purchase volumes of our products in the future. In addition,
there is no assurance that we will be able to maintain business relationship
with our customers. In the event that any of our customers ceases to purchase
from us or reduces the purchase volume of orders placed with us and we are
unable to obtain replacement orders, our business and profitability may be
adversely affected.

Risks pertaining to raw material price fluctuations

The principal raw materials used in our production may be subject to
substantial price volatility and periodic shortages caused by external
conditions, such as fluctuations in commodity prices and foreign exchange.
There is no guarantee that raw material costs will be stable in the future. To
the extent that we are unable to cover any increased raw material costs by
either reductions in other production costs or increases in our product prices,
our profits will be adversely affected.

Operation risks

The operation of the Group is subject to a number of risk factors distinctive to
the respective markets. Default on the part of the Group’s customers,
distributors, suppliers and business partners, and inadequacies or failures of
internal processes, people and systems or other external factors may have
various levels of negative impact on the results of operations. Additionally,
accidents may happen despite systems and policies set up for their prevention,
which may lead to finance loss, litigation or damage in reputation.

Market risks

The Group is also subject to market risks such as currency fluctuations,
volatility of interest rates, credit risks and liquidity risks in the normal course of
the Group's businesses. Particulars of financial risk management of the Group
are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Risks relating to compliance with laws and regulations

We are required to comply with all relevant laws and regulations promulgated
by the governments of the respective jurisdictions. There is no assurance that
the existing laws and regulations will not be changed or additional or more
stringent requirement will not be imposed, compliance with which may cause
us to incur significant expenditure. Moreover, if we fail to comply with the
present or future laws and regulations, we may be required to pay substantial
fines, suspend production or cease operations. Consequently, our financial
condition, business and reputation may be adversely affected.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group strives to enhance governance, promote employee benefits and
development, protect the environment, fulfill social responsibility in order to
achieve sustainable growth. The Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the operations of the Group.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group’s environmental policies and performance was set out in the
section headed “Corporate Social Responsibilities” in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on page 21 of this annual report.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2017 is being prepared
with reference to Appendix 27 Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide to the Listing Rules and will be published on the HKEXnews
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.

Key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by providing
comprehensive benefit package, career development opportunities and
internal training appropriate to individual needs. The Group provides a healthy
and safe workplace for all employees. No strikes and cases of fatality due to
workplace accidents are found in the year under review.

The Group maintains working relationships with suppliers to meet our
customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. Our departments work
closely to make sure the tendering and procurement process is conducted in
an open, fair and just manner. The Group’s requirements and standards are
also well-communicated to suppliers.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through various
means and channels to understand customer trends and needs and regularly
analyses on customer feedback. The Group also conducts comprehensive tests
and checks to ensure that only quality products and services are offered to the
customers.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Share
Award Scheme” on pages 39 to 43 of this report, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2017.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Share
Award Scheme” on pages 39 to 43 of this report, no equity-linked agreement
was entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2017.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) was in force during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to
the date of this report.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgement is given in his
favour, or in which he is acquitted. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years is set out on page 5.

SHARES AND DEBENTURES ISSUED

Details of the Shares issued during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set
out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group did not issue any debentures during the year ended 31 December
2017.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 71 and Note 17 and Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$1,014,479,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company, except that the trustee of the Share Award Scheme, pursuant to
the terms of the scheme rules and trust deed of the Share Award Scheme,
purchased on behalf of the Group on the Stock Exchange a total of 1,010,000
Shares at a total consideration of approximately HK$1.1 million.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-executive Director

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace
Mr. NG Bo Kwong

Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric

In accordance with article 130 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Messrs. LIU Zigang, CHING Tsun Wah, KEUNG Kwok Hung, SUN Yung Tson
Eric shall retire at the AGM and being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-
election.

Confirmation of independence of independent non-
executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). The Company considers that Messrs. HUNG Kam Hung Allan,
MA Chun Fung Horace, NG Bo Kwong and SUN Yung Tson Eric are
independent. The reasons for considering Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric
independent are set out in the section headed “Board responsibilities and
delegation” in the “Corporate Governance Report” on page 46.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than Directors’ service contracts and employment contracts with the
Group's senior management in full-time employment, no contracts concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group were entered into or in existence during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2017 is contained in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements. There are no other connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions that require the Company to be disclosed under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EENRBEN

BREREERRAFASLEENESTNE
FVEENAR —FANMIEECEERER
SN M IR RIS & 49 o

EEREEXRS  Z¥FHEHZ
E =

RERIBE-_FT—tF+-_A=1T—HL
FERNEMER BEFEREEREES
FREZERBERIHMERAEARENE
EXG RHLEH -

EEEN

BREERBANLAEESREEBENEZR
BEANN BE_T—tF+_A=+—
BLFE UEBIVAFERAEEEE 2
MEEFNERBOABNEERITHRAL

BERXS

AEBRBE_FT—tF+-_A=1t—HL
FEALZBB O XU ERRN G A M B R
R - BEEMCHAEIZIREEFER
SARRAREBEETRAUFVAZELRE -

HEREEERAERAR —T—+FFH 33



Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEERE @)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORTPOSITIONSIN EEZERAQAF R EMEBEEZE R
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES {7 - HHE RGO R BEREZ 2ERZ R
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED RE

CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors in
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures ([ 4 R HI S (&6 ) 2 %% « BB H R E
Ordinance ("SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under  jE & A AIRIEZ A & S I1E0 5352
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the (KB F#EF Y Z2Mh B BIE FT3ETA
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by @ HEFTE AT HHIEESTA ([EEFE]])
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") were as follows: BEANBI R ERR AR T

RZB—+F+-RA=+—HB BEBFRERQ
B EEAABEE (EE RES LB %D
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Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares RBOREERG A
Number of
underlying
Shares held
under equity
derivatives
Number of Shares held (Note 1)
MRASTE
IARKEZ
HEARGHE
BEERGHE (Met1)
Corporate Approximate
Personal Family Interests Personal percentage of
Interests Interests (interests of Interests issued Shares
(beneficial (interests of controlled (beneficial as at
Name of Directors owner) spouse) corporation) owner) Total 31 December 2017
R-E—+F
+t=A=+-H
BARERE Rk EEER BAER ERITRGAZ
ESHR (BREEA) (BEER) (TELEER) (BEEEA) @t BMABES K
Mr. CHING Chi Fai 15,444,000 — 197,666,200 — 213,110,200 29.33%
BEBEE (Note 2 & 3)
(H1##28&3)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung 2,000,000 — 32,499,600 2,000,000 36,499,600 5.02%
BEmEE (Note 3)
(Kf7£3)
Mr. LIU Zigang 2,000,000 — 20,057,200 2,000,000 24,057,200 3.31%
217 m k£ (Note 4)
(Ktzt4)
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah 3,734,000 775,000 — — 4,509,000 0.62%
BEELE (Note 5)
(Wi &ts5)
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung — — — 1,158,000 1,158,000 0.16%
=R AL
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching — — 32,499,600 — 32,499,600 4.47%
PR ) 22 £ (Note 3)
(Ht5t3)
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Number of
underlying
Shares held
under equity
derivatives
Number of Shares held (Note 1)
MRASTE
IAEEZ
HERGHE
BEERGHE (Bfer1)
Corporate Approximate
Personal Family Interests Personal percentage of
Interests Interests (interests of Interests issued Shares
(beneficial (interests of controlled (beneficial as at
Name of Directors owner) spouse) corporation) owner) Total 31 December 2017
R-B—+F
+t=ZB=+-—H
BAER RikE R EEER BAER ERTRGZ
ESHR (BREEA) (BEER) (TELEER) (BHEEA) wet BMABES K
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung — — — 600,000 600,000 0.08%
Allan
LI E
Mr. MA Chung Fung 600,000 — — — 600,000 0.08%
Horace
BRI E
Mr. NG Bo Kwong 600,000 — — — 600,000 0.08%
RERAEE
Notes: Btat -

1.

These underlying Shares held under equity derivatives represented the share
options granted by the Company (being regarded as unlisted physically settled
equity derivatives). Details of the share options granted to the Directors are set
out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited, which was
wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai.

32,499,600 Shares were held by Targetwise Trading Limited, which was owned
as to 50%, 31.54% and 18.46% by Mr. CHING Chi Keung, Ms. CHAN Yim
Ching and Mr. CHING Chi Fai respectively.

20,057,200 Shares were held by Favour Power Limited, which was wholly-owned
by Mr. LIU Zigang.

775,000 Shares were held by Ms. SO Wai Yin Tracy, the spouse of Mr. CHING
Tsun Wah.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors had
any interest or short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of

the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

LEEABRATETAREZRBRO AR
AREZEREERABAEMET ZIELT
BATETR) BRTEFEZBRES BN
TRt &) —% -

2. 165,166,600 % % 15 H Prosper Well International
Limited$5 5 ' MZ AGIHBREBLEZEH
5o

3. 32,499,600 % f% 17 F Targetwise Trading Limited
?—rﬁ Mz ARHBEREE RUMBELZLR

EIELEE D BIEAS0% + 31.54% % 18.46%

ﬁé%ﬁ °

4. 20,057,2000% A% 17 | Favour Power Limited$5 & -

M ARMBHRFRLEELEESR -

5. 775000 R IR HIZEELEZ R BHEE X
THE-

b EXPTIEEEN - R —tF+=ZA=

+—H - #BMEESR $AT%§EH@%/

B (EEREFRPEGE) 2 - RO
LERETFHEEMNLCAREBE S KB EK

B %5352 1638 F
AE SR ZE R
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER ARREKRHMATHRERQITRG
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN RiERHO2EZRAXE

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, so far as it was known by or otherwise notifed by WZZE—+F+_A=+—"8B gEMESE
any Director, the interests and short positions of the substantial Shareholders — Fr&lB sk E A H M T N EBE - AKRE R
and other persons (other than a Director), in Shares and underlying Shares as  H h A + (ZEEBRIN) RIEH LB IR G F
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO AR ARIEHE A L E LT E3361KETER

were as follows: HMERMPZESRABRAT
Long positions in Shares RGO ZEFR
Number of Shares held
BFERGA#A
Corporate Approximate
Personal Family Corporate  Corporate Interests percentage of
Interests Interests Interests Interests (interests of issued Shares
(beneficial (interests of (beneficial (investment controlled as at
Name owner) spouse) owner)  manager) corporation) Total 31 December 2017
R=-B-+#F
+ZA=+-H
BARR KR TEEE  FEER TEER 2RTRGEZ
BB/ 1HE (BERHEA) (REER) (BREBA) (RELE) (TEIEER) @ BHEA
Prosper Well International Limited (Note 1) — — 165,166,600 — — 165,166,600 22.73%
Prosper Well International Limited (4% 1)
Ms. LO Kit Ling (Note 1) — 213,110,200 — — — 213,110,200 29.33%
B2t (fa1)
Ms. PO Fung Kiu (Note 2) — 36,499,600 — — — 36,499,600 5.02%
mBEZLT (W H2)
Mr. David Michael WEBB (Note 3) 29,975,335 — — — 58,035,665 88,011,000 12.11%
David Michael WEBB 5% 4 (f5£3)
Preferable Situation Assets Limited (Note 3) — — 58,035,665 — — 58,035,665 7.99%
Preferable Situation Assets Limited (/7% 3)
Wykeham Capital Asia Value Fund (Note 4) — — 44,570,000 — — 44,570,000 6.13%
Wykeham Capital Asia Value Fund (f7#4)
Wykeham Capital Limited (Note 4) — — — 44,570,000 — 44,570,000 6.13%
Wykeham Capital Limited (47£4)
Mr. Howel Gruffudd Rhys THOMAS (Note 4) — — — — 44,570,000 44,570,000 6.13%

Howel Gruffudd Rhys THOMAS ¢ 4 (ff:£4)

36 Ming Fai International Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2017



Notes:

165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited, which was
wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai (an executive Director and the Chairman of
the Company). 32,499,600 Shares were held by Targetwise Trading Limited,
which was owned as to 18.46% by Mr. CHING Chi Fai. Mr. CHING Chi Fai also
beneficially held 15,444,000 Shares. Ms. LO Kit Ling, being the spouse of Mr.
CHING Chi Fai, was deemed to be interested in the 213,110,200 Shares in which
Mr. CHING Chi Fai interested.

Ms. PO Fung Kiu, being the spouse of Mr. CHING Chi Keung (an executive
Director), was deemed to be interested in the 36,499,600 Shares in which Mr.
CHING Chi Keung interested.

Based on the disclosure of interests notice of Preferable Situation Assets Limited
with the date of relevant event on 10 July 2017 received by the Company,
58,035,665 Shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, which was
wholly-owned by Mr. David Michael WEBB, representing 8.00% of the issued
Shares as at that day. Based on the disclosure of interests notice of Mr. David
Michael WEBB with the date of relevant event on 11 May 2017 received by the
Company, Mr. David Michael WEBB beneficially held 29,975,335 Shares. Save as
disclosed above, no further respective disclosure of interests notices of Mr. David
Michael WEBB and Preferable Situation Assets Limited with the date of relevant
event on or before 31 December 2017 were received by the Company.

Based on the disclosure of interests notices with the date of relevant event on 17
May 2017 received by the Company, Mr. Howel Gruffudd Rhys THOMAS was
deemed to be interested in the 44,570,000 Shares owned by Wykeham Capital
Asia Value Fund by virtue of his 100% shareholding interest in Wykeham Capital
Limited (which was the investment manager of Wykeham Capital Asia Value
Fund). Save as disclosed above, no further respective disclosure of interests
notices of Wykeham Capital Asia Value Fund, Wykeham Capital Limited and Mr.
Howel Gruffudd Rhys THOMAS with the date of relevant event on or before 31
December 2017 were received by the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Directors’ interests and

short

and its associated corporations”,

positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
as at 31 December 2017, so far as it was

known by or otherwise notified by any Director, none of the substantial
Shareholders and other persons (other than a Director), had any interest or

short

positions in Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register

required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, none of the Directors has any interest
in any business apart from the Group'’s business, which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a
controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2017.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration of our employees (including the Directors) are generally
structured by reference to market terms and individual merits. Salaries are
reviewed annually with reference to market conditions and the performance,
qualifications and experience of individual employees. Discretionary bonuses
are paid on an annual basis based on the results of the Group, individual
performance and other relevant factors. The Company has also introduced
the key performance indicators assessment scheme to boost performance and
operational efficiency.

The Company has also adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) and the Share Award Scheme to recognise and reward the eligible
employees for their contributions to the business and development of the
Group.

38  Ming Fai International Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2017
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AR ST El

The Company has conditionally adopted the Share Option Scheme on 5 ZAAGRKR-_ZE+F+A A B BIEHEWNE
October 2007. Particulars of movements in the share options during the year R #=ztZ - H#Exz-_Z—+FE+-_8=+—H

ended 31 December 2017 were as follows: IEEE - ﬁ%ﬂﬁé ZEBFEBOAT
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding  Granted Exercised Cancelled  Lapsed Outstanding
asat  during during  during  during asat
Exercise 1 January the the the the 31 December
Grantee Date of grant Exercise period price 2017 year year year year 2017
RZE—t ff- R-B—tf
-A- £/ £ FR ER +tZA=t-H
ARA RitiBH TS ﬁfﬁg o KT {E B (g :d il P i K176
B
Directors
Mr. CHING Chi Keung 04-09-2012 23-06-2013 to 22-06-2019 0.62 2,000,000 — — — — 2,000,000
BEREE “ZE-ZENAmE ZZ2-— E/\ﬂf‘l'EElé
—E-NFAR=Zt+=H
Mr. LIU Zigang 04-09-2012 23-06-2013 to 22-06-2019 0.62 2,000,000 — — — — 2,000,000
2FmEE ZZ-ZFNANAB ZT-=§/A-t=HZ
“E-AFRAZTZH
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung 04-09-2012 09-09-2012 to 08-09-2021 0.62 579,000 — — — — 579,000
ZEMRE —Z-—FNAMB ZE-—€AANAE
—Z-_-%hANR
04-09-2012 09-09-2013 to 08-09-2021 0.62 579,000 — — — — 579,000
—T--FARMA —T-Z=FAANAZE
—Z-_-%hANR
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching 04-09-2012 23-06-2013 to 22-06-2019 0.62 1,800,000 — (1,800,000) — — —
B g+ “Z-ZFNANAB ZT-=§/ A-t=HZ%
“E-AFRAZTZH
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan - 04-09-2012 04-09-2012 to 22-06-2019 0.62 300,000 — — — — 300,000
bk b S “E-ZFAAMA T -FNANAE
—E-NEARAZTZH
04-09-2012 23-06-2013 t0 22-06-2019 0.62 300,000 — — - — 300,000
ZT-Z§NAWA 72 E/\ﬁ +=H0Z%
-NEXAZ+Z=A
Employees
S
In aggregate 04-09-2012 04-09-2012 to 22-06-2019 0.62 1,825,000 —  (388,000) — — 1,437,000
CHl “T-ZEAAMA ZE-Z-FAAMAZ
“Z-NAFRA-TZH
04-09-2012 23-06-2013 to 22-06-2019 0.62 2,518,000 —  (388,000) — — 2,130,000
—T-ZFNAWNA _T_:E/\H +=H%
—T-NFARZ+ZH
04-09-2012 09-09-2012 to 08-09-2021 0.62 994,000 —  (50,000) — — 944,000
ZE-ZFAAMA ZE-ZFAANAZE
—TZ-§¥nANB
04-09-2012 09-09-2013 to 08-09-2021 0.62 994,000 —  (50,000) — — 944,000
ZE-ZFAARA ZE-=FAANAZE
—Z_—-%#nANH
04-09-2012 04-09-2013 to 03-09-2022 0.62 404,500 — — — — 404,500
ZE-ZFNARA ZE-=FAAMAZE
e s =
04-09-2012 04-09-2014 to 03-09-2022 0.62 516,500 — — — — 516,500
ZE-ZFAAMA ZE-MFAAMAZE
“E--fNA=H
Total 14,810,000 — (2,676,000) - — 12,134,000
Eo

The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the REZE-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—BILFE "
dates on which the share options were exercised for the year ended 31 R AEZEBERETERH Z AWM INETY
December 2017 was HK$1.20 per Share (for the year ended 31 December W HEASRI20ET(HE-_ET—E+=

2016: HK$1.17 per Share). A=+—HIFE  §KR11787T) °
RAEREREZERERAR —T—t&4®% 39
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the Share
Option Scheme:

(1

(2)

(3)

40

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme was to enable the Board to
grant options to selected employees (whether full time or part time
including the Directors) of any member of the Group (the “Eligible
Persons”) as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group.

The terms of the Share Option Scheme provided that in granting
options under the Share Option Scheme, the Board was entitled to
determine whether there is any minimum holding period, and whether
there is any performance target which must be achieved, before an
option granted under the Share Option Scheme is exercised. The Board
was also entitled to determine the option price per Share payable on
the exercise of an option (the “Exercise Price”) according to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme. Such terms, together with the incentives
that the option will bring about, the Board believed, would serve the
purpose of the Share Option Scheme.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was effective during the period of 10 years
commencing on 2 November 2007 (the date on which the Share Option
Scheme become unconditional) and the Share Option Scheme was
expired on 1 November 2017. On expiry of the Share Option Scheme,
no further option shall be granted but in all other respects the
provisions of the Share Options Scheme shall remain in force. All
options granted and accepted prior to such expiry shall continue to be
valid and exercisable in accordance with their terms and terms of the
Share Option Scheme.

Basis of eligibility

The Board at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it might think
fit, granted options to any Eligible Person to subscribe at the Exercise
Price for such number of Shares as determined in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible Persons to the grant of

options were determined by the Board on the basis of his contribution
or potential contribution to the development and growth of the Group.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

AT RBEETERANERGHIYR

4

(2)

(3)

BRESENEDN

BREFHEEREFERNAEEHIM
KREARZERER(TWE2BAFR
B EREFEAN)(RERALTDER
BRE FRAREHAKEFELEMNK
BB RE IR

AR SRR E - ERIR B BAES
ERhERER EFEARREMR
EEREEMED CBRERITE
Al REREFEMKRIFHEHR KE
BEINTMERREG -EFSNEHEE
TE AR 45 BB AR A B A6 AR AT (R B A M B A
s REn BREER(TTERED -
ZEGRIMEEBRESEENGR &
FERERTERBRETENEN -

BRETEHR

ERESER-_ZEZLF+—AZA
(BREFIEREBHRMEZA) BN+
FHEANEN  BBEREFEHCR-F
—tE+-A-BEH - NERETE
B ST e - SR ERE
HE B AR HE A &) 2 RSO P B A 7 m 4D
BEER -RZERMERIRERZ
P BB RS AR IR B A S B IR
WEZGRBRERR XA TITE -

BEBNER

EFEEUERBNBEAREEAER/E
BHER AEANAERALIRHBR
B UHRERTEERBREBRE
FHEIMIGRPTEE BB D

EEQRELMNAEBATERBRE
MABEBRER WRERSANEHHHE
BREBERMELOBERIBENERE

E o



(4)

(5)

(6)

Price for subscription of Shares

The Exercise Price was determined by the Board at the higher of:

(@  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the
option which must be a business day; and

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant,

provided that the Exercise Price shall in no event be less than the
nominal amount of one Share.

Acceptance of offers

The amount payable to the Company as acceptance of the offer for the
grant of an option was HK$1.00.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which might be issued upon the
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (excluding, for
this purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on
the listing date (i.e. 2 November 2007) (the “Scheme Limit").

The Scheme Limit could be refreshed at any time subject to
Shareholders’ approval provided that such limit as refreshed should not
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
renewed limit. Share options previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised)
would not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Limit
as refreshed. On 23 May 2013, the refreshment of the Scheme Limit
was approved by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting. As at
the date of this annual report, the number of Shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme is 11,646,000 which represents
approximately 1.60% of the total number of issued Shares.

(4)

(5)

(6)
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(7) Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company to any Eligible Person
(including cancelled, exercised and outstanding options), in any
12-month period should not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from
time to time.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 23 September 2016, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme in
which the Group’s employees, directors, consultants or advisers will be
entitled to participate. During the year ended 31 December 2017, a sum of
approximately HK$1.1 million has been used to acquire 1,010,000 Shares
from the market by the independent trustee (Bank of Communications
Trustee Limited) which is independent and not connected with the Company.
No Shares have been granted to eligible persons under the Share Award
Scheme up to the date of this report.

The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognise the
contributions by certain eligible persons; and (ii) to offer suitable incentives to
attract and retain targeted talent and personnel for the continuance of
operations and future development of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the Board
and the independent trustee in accordance with the scheme rules and the
trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. Subject to any early termination as
may be determined by the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of 10 years commencing on its adoption date (i.e. 23
September 2016).
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The Board shall not make any further award of awarded Shares which will
result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded by the Board under the
Share Award Scheme exceeding 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The maximum number of Shares which may be
awarded to a selected person under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the announcement of the

Company dated 23 September 2016.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers

accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended
31 December 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total number of
issued Shares was held by the public as at the date of this report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group made charitable
donations amounting to approximately HK$154,000.
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AUDITOR %D

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being AR QTR E TR KB E M EBTER

eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM. BEHREAFASRMI FTEERTRBEWER
BB -

On behalf of the Board REEFE

CHING Chi Fai *TE

Chairman BEE

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018 B T NF=A=+N\H
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Corporate Governance Report
M 55 9 ‘Aiﬁﬂ:

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high standards of
corporate governance practices. The corporate governance principles of the
Company emphasise accountability and transparency and are adopted in the
best interest of the Company and its Shareholders. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of Shareholders and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board has reviewed its policies
and practices on corporate governance, and policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group has complied with all the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) during the year ended 31 December
2017, as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except the deviation of
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code that the Board has not appointed an
individual to the post of chief executive officer up to the date of this report
and the role of the chief executive officer has been performed collectively by
all the executive Directors, including the chairman of the Company. The Board
considers that this arrangement allows contributions from all executive
Directors with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the
Company’s policies and strategies.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Board comprises the
following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-executive Director

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace
Mr. NG Bo Kwong

Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the Company, and
monitors performance and risks in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the
Company. Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
executive Directors or the senior management in charge of each division. All
Directors (including non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors) have been consulted on all major and material matters of the
Group.

The Board has delegated some of its function to the board committees, details
of which are set out below. Matters specifically reserved for the Board,
including convening Shareholders’ meetings, implementing the Shareholders’
resolutions, determining the Group’s business plans and strategies,
formulating the Group’s annual budget and final accounts, formulating
proposals for dividend and bonus distributions and for increase or reduction
of share capital, determining the Group’s corporate structure, formulating
investment plans as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as
conferred by the Articles of Association of the Company.
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The attendance of the Directors at Board meetings, committee meetings and
annual general meeting of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2017 were as follows:

Number

BE-T—tET-A=+—BLER R
ARREFERE FASEERBREAS
ABMEFHEENT -

of meetings attended/held

ERHERY ETRE

Executive Audit

Board Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting
EExg U1TZEEE BENZEEE

Remuneration Nomination Investment  Annual
Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
FMEEE REEZEE REZEE RREF

=f =f ] =E ] E f =E ] xEg
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHING Chi Fai REELE 717 5/5 — 212 1n 212 1n
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BERTAE 717 5/5 — — — — 1"
Mr. LIU Zigang 7R %E 717 5/5 — — — — 11
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BEELE 717 4/5 — — — — 1
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEELEE 717 5/5 — — — 22 17
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching BR &% & & 6/7 — — — — — 11
Independent BYKHTES

non-executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan 7, 8 3t 5 4 717 — 212 22 — — 1
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace ~ HiRIE &4 717 — 22 22 1n 212 1”1
Mr. NG Bo Kwong RREEAE 717 — 212 112 — — 1
Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric B E L 717 — 212 22 1n — 1

Each executive Director has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years while each non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Director has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of one year. All the Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. All the service
contracts or appointment letters of Directors with the Company may be
terminated by either party giving written notice in accordance with the terms
of service contracts or appointment letters.

BERTESFHEEARARITRB=F2R
BAaK MBEFRATEETRBIIFATES
BMERARBRIRB - F2ZEE - 28
EEPARARAABERANRARA R
RBEFXRE FHERE THESEE-RES
FHEARBMIRBEOXZEST 2K
ERBEHNREZEESHIAREMN—TAE
EBAA AL

HEREEERERAR —T—+FFH 4/



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBE ()

The Company has appointed sufficient number of independent non-executive
Directors in accordance to the requirements of the Listing Rules and Mr. MA
Chun Fung Horace has appropriate accounting professional qualifications. The
Company has received from each independent non-executive Director, namely
Messrs. HUNG Kam Hung Allan, MA Chun Fung Horace, NG Bo Kwong and
SUN Yung Tson Eric, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the independence requirements as
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Save that Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric is the son of Mr. SUN Kai Lit Cliff, who was
a former independent non-executive Director, Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric is not
and was not connected with any of the Director, the chief executive of the
Company or a substantial Shareholder within two years immediately prior to
the date of his appointment and up to the date of this report. Both Mr. SUN
Kai Lit Cliff and Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric met the requirements of
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the
Board considered that Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric was independent and his
independence should not be affected by reason of only being the son of Mr.
SUN Kai Lit Cliff who was a former independent non-executive Director.

Mr. CHING Chi Keung, an executive Director, is a brother of Mr. CHING Chi
Fai who is the chairman of the Company and an executive Director. Mr.
CHING Tsun Wah, an executive Director, is the son of Mr. CHING Chi Fai and
a nephew of Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, seven Board meetings were held.

Minutes of the Board meetings are being kept by the company secretary of
the Company and are available for inspection by the Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on 5 October 2007. Having made specific enquiries to all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2017.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees:
. Executive Committee;

. Audit Committee;

. Remuneration Committee;
. Nomination Committee; and
. Investment Committee.

Executive Committee

The chairman of the Executive Committee is Mr. CHING Chi Fai and the
members of the Executive Committee are Messrs. CHING Chi Keung, LIU
Zigang, CHING Tsun Wah and KEUNG Kwok Hung, all are executive Directors.

Other than the matters reserved for the Board and other committees, the
Executive Committee has been delegated with the general powers to deal
with the daily operations and management of the Company, including but
not limited to opening bank accounts, arranging banking facilities, affixing
the Common Seal, issue of Shares upon exercise of any subscription or
conversion rights under any share option scheme, warrants or convertible
notes and setting up new companies.

Five meetings were held by the Executive Committee during the year ended
31 December 2017.
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Audit Committee

The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace, who
possesses professional accounting qualifications and relevant accounting
experience and the members of the Audit Committee are Messrs. HUNG Kam

Hung

Allan, NG Bo Kwong and SUN Yung Tson Eric (all are independent non-

executive Directors).

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

50

to make recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process;

to develop and implement policy on engaging external auditors to
supply non-audit services,

to monitor integrity of the interim and annual financial statements;

to review significant financial reporting judgements, in particular, to
focus on any changes in accounting policies and practices;

to review the Group’s financial control, internal control and risk

management systems;

to ensure that management has performed its duties to have effective
risk management and internal control systems and to consider any
major investigations findings on risk management and internal control
matters;

to review the external auditors’ management letter, any material queries
raised by the external auditors to management about the accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s
response;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness; and

to review arrangements by which employees of the Company may, in
confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters.
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TEEB®RSE ()

The Audit Committee has performed the following work during the year
ended 31 December 2017:

o reviewed the interim and annual results of the Group, and the relevant

statements and reports prior to Board approval and reviewed the
external auditor’s reports and findings on the work performed;

J reviewed the external auditor’s audit plan, terms of engagement for the
audit and determined and reported the key audit matters;

o considered and approved the audit fee payable to the external auditor;

o reviewed the independency and objectivity of the external auditors, and
the non-audit service fee payable to the external auditor;

o reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group involving financial, operational and compliance
control; and

o considered and reviewed the proposals of internal audit plan.

Two meetings were held by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31
December 2017.

Remuneration Committee

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan
and the members of the Remuneration Committee are Messrs. CHING Chi Fai,
MA Chun Fung Horace, NG Bo Kwong and SUN Yung Tson Eric (save that Mr.
CHING Chi Fai is an executive Director, all are independent non-executive
Directors).

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

J to make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management;

o to review and determine the remuneration packages, bonuses and
other compensation payable to the executive Directors and senior
management and make recommendations to the Board; and

° to recommend to the Board the remuneration of non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee has performed the following work during the
year ended 31 December 2017:

o considered and reviewed the remuneration packages and the
performance of each Director and the senior management and
recommended the adjustments of remuneration of Directors;

o considered and reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy in relation to
that of comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and the senior management and desirability of
performance-based remuneration; and

o reviewed and recommended to the Board the appointment letters of
non-executive Director and each independent non-executive Director.

The Remuneration Committee considered that the existing terms of
remunerations of each Director and the senior management were fair and
reasonable.

Two meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The remuneration of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2017 is as follows:
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Number of individuals
A"
2017

—2-+tF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 7T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001;% 7T % 1,500,000 7% 7T
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T % 2,000,000 % 7T
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Nomination Committee

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. CHING Chi Fai and the
members of the Nomination Committee are Messrs. MA Chun Fung Horace
and SUN Yung Tson Eric (save that Mr. CHING Chi Fai is an executive Director,
all are independent non-executive Directors).

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identification and
recommendation to the Board of possible appointees as Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to appointment or re-
appointment of Directors, succession planning for Directors and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee has performed the following work during the
year ended 31 December 2017:

o reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o considered the re-election of Directors at the annual general meeting;
and
o assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

One meeting was held by the Nomination Committee during the year ended
31 December 2017.

Investment Committee

The chairman of the Investment Committee is Mr. CHING Chi Fai and the
members of the Investment Committee are Messrs. MA Chun Fung Horace
and KEUNG Kwok Hung (save that Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace is an
independent non-executive Director, all are executive Directors).

The Investment Committee has been delegated by the Board to deal with
investments and divestments of the Group which are less than US$20 million
or 5% of the total market capitalisation of the Company in aggregate,
whichever is lower. Each investment shall not exceed 10% of the aforesaid
amount.

Two meetings were held by the Investment Committee during the year ended
31 December 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL EECRHEEERRE
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should #RIENMETE|IZ SFAENEAGSIE 28EE
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh EEZ2 HEFEEZEHENERILE FH N
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the R figee kAR HEE T A E LT E AT
Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors also understand the NYIAFE BN THEEZSEHER - &2
importance of continuous professional development and are committed to EEEE M EF BEEL R 2 EB - WK
participating any suitable training or read relevant materials in order to L ETMEAMNEIIHEEMEBEER A
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has received R EFEMHZ L TRE - KA A2 EE
from each Director a confirmation of their participation in continuous fIZEBFEEN NI HFRLEFEHLERE

professional development by the following means: A
Attending seminar(s) Reading materials
SmmNE HEER

Executive Directors BTES
Mr. CHING Chi Fai REEEE v -
Mr. CHING Chi Keung TR A 4 —
Mr. LIU Zigang 217 1 5% A v —
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BEELE v —
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZE L E v —
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching FeR )5 22 + 4 —
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan FLER AL e A& 4 —
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace IR I 5 A4 v v
Mr. NG Bo Kwong RRHKEE v v
Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric RETREE 4 —
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy setting out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered diversity of Board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Board will also take into account factors based on the Group’s business model
and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Listing Rules, the compliance of the Model Code by the
Directors and employees and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report. During the year ended
31 December 2017, the Board has reviewed the aforesaid Company’s
compliance of corporate governance policies and practices.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group. The Group's internal
control system includes a well defined management structure with limits of
authority which is designed for the achievement of business objectives,
safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring proper
maintenance of books and records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or publication, and ensuring compliance with
relevant legislations and regulations. In addition, the Group has established
risk management procedures to identify and prioritise risks for the business to
be addressed by management. At least on an annual basis, management
identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the Group's
objectives, and assesses and prioritises the identified risks according to a set of
standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk owners are then established
for those risks considered to be significant.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board appointed a professional
consulting firm with the responsibility to conduct internal audit function and
assess risks of the Company and perform the agreed-upon procedures in
relation to the internal controls of the business of the Group. The Audit
Committee and the management will follow up the suggestions from the
aforesaid professional consulting firm to further improve the internal control
system. The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 and is satisfied with the scope and effectiveness of the systems. The
review included but was not limited to the Group’s ability to cope with its
business transformation and changing external environment; the scope and
quality of management’s review on risk management and internal control
systems; result of internal audit work; the extent and frequency of
communication with the Board in relation to result of risks and internal
control review; significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and status of compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board
considers the Group's risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of the SFO and the Listing Rules. The
Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as
provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or
that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group will immediately
disclose the information to the public. The Group is committed to ensuring
that information contained in announcements are not false or misleading as
to a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a material
fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which
requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with Shareholders is given high priority by the Group. A
Shareholder communication policy has been adopted for the purpose of
ensuring that the Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to the balanced and understandable information about the Company.

56 Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

REE-_ZEZ—+tF+_A=1t-HILFE
N EFECLZEIEXERARNAARTA
MELNELRFHARANEAR  XLETHE
MASEXBOANLEEZNEERERF - BX
ZEGhEEESRENLEEEMAARN
R NE—SPREEHABEERG - AKH
MO#E EARERFBRARELTDNE

B o

HE_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE &
ZEERNASERREENANEZERR
Z BB W ARG R E S E A R
AmE - ERETrTRREAEBERER
BELURIEEENINERENGE N BE
ERTEAREERABEZRASORERET
REG: AMEBEATESER AR EAR
ERRIEREEZEREBNFERERR
ERBANBREARIRBREBEHATE
AR ETRAUANERBER - BEFTERAR/LE
BRREERANEERGCBERL R -

EERBHAABEENEFRAL

B

AEBEBTEZRBEGI R ETRANH
E-AEERAGEUEATBRATERARD
FHREABHEE BIFFHERBRES LY
ERPTERNZZ2BEEAN - ERNAREE
BEABBHEER AEEBRREEBRBRE -
WAKERREZIRFLENREE - A
EREERRTRELE AEEKHNERIRNE
BHE - AKBERNBERASHABEN
EXZEMFETEERKAREN  RiE
RIAVEH FEM T A27EE (MEERE®
EFERHSEREMS )L THEREAEE
mEERIAREN -

BERRNEE

ARESEERERROBR NEERM
BRBARK BEBRBRRAEEREE
H-BEREEZEENRABER -



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERME (E

Extensive information about the Group’s activities has been provided in the
annual reports and the interim reports which are sent to the Shareholders and
are available on the Company’s website (www.mingfaigroup.com). All
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the general meetings of the Company
to discuss the businesses of the Group with the Directors and senior
management in the general meetings. External auditor is also invited to attend
the AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation
and content of the independent auditor’'s report, the accounting policies
adopted by the Company in relation to the preparation of the financial
statements and independence of the auditor in relation to the conduct of the
audit.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by the
Shareholders

The procedures of convening an extraordinary general meeting by the
Shareholders are as follows:

Pursuant to article 79 of the Articles of Association of the Company, general
meetings may be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
members of the Company deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office, specifying the objects of the meeting and signed
by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or
its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office, specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a
further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board, provided that any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.
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Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new resolution at
general meetings under the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Making enquires to the Board

Shareholders may make enquires to the Board in writing to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit D3, 8/F, TML Tower, No. 3
Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial period which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and of results and cash
flow for the period. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently; adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made prudent
and reasonable judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis. The Directors also warrant that the
Group's financial statements will be published in a timely manner.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 60 to 66 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The external auditor of the Company is PricewaterhouseCoopers. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, the fees payable by the Company to the external
auditor are HK$2,680,000 for the performance of audit services and
HK$761,000 for provision of non-audit services.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the
Board as to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors, which is subject to the approval by the Board and the Shareholders
at general meetings of the Company.

The Audit Committee will take into account certain factors including the audit

performance, quality, objectivity and independence of the auditor, when
assessing the external auditor.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

On behalf of the Board

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BHABEBRERERATRE
MING FAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (RESHSHFMK ZHER A E])
OPINION =R

What we have audited EMEBERZAR

The consolidated financial statements of Ming Fai International Holdings EBEBIIZERER AT (A TEBIEAT )
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages M EMB AT (A THBEISEE)EH NS

67 to 172, which comprise: TR IT2EWMGAMBRE B
e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017; . RZZE—+F+_A=T—HNEKEEE
EBEXR:
. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then o HEZALFENES 2 EKEE
ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then e HEZBILEFENGEERESH K
ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and HEZALFENEERERER &

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a e SEMERERZHMT EHBREEARE

summary of significant accounting policies. TR E -
PricewaterhouseCoopers A2k K 8 B il AT
22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong Tl PR AR B H
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888 Mt : +852 2289 8888 » fHE : +852 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

FARFSER

MREAFTHERBERMOEXHE AR
HAHGEEMBRRAZ/EENTR B
EHRERMEMABERAMBHRRIEA
EARETREEN - RMTEHELFHIE
HEBNER -

HEEEE

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Refer to Notes 4 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements for
the related disclosures.

As at 31 December 2017, the provision for impairment of trade
receivables amounted to HK$38.7 million, of which HK$38.0 million
was attributable to customers located in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC").

Customers located in the PRC generally has a slower settlement pattern
and may settle after the contractual credit period. Management
performed credit monitoring, which included the periodic review of
customers’ credit worthiness, collection of outstanding balances, latest
business development and individual credit terms. If there is indicator
that the trade receivables are impaired, such as defaults of the debtors
or if debtors encounter significant financial difficulties, management
would individually assess trade receivables for impairment with
reference to the recoverable amount.

We focused on this area due to the estimation and judgement involved
in the collectability of trade receivables.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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We understood and validated the credit control procedures performed by
management, including its procedures on periodic review on aged trade
receivables, and assessment on recoverability of these receivables. We have
reviewed the aging profile on trade receivables, including focusing on the
aged trade receivables for which no provision had been made. We tested
the subsequent settlement of these balances. For unsettled trade
receivables, we enquired management on the reasons for which receivables
being outstanding, and if actions had been taken in recovering the long
outstanding receivables, and assessed if additional provision should be
made.

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation and judgement made
by management in respect of the collectability of trade receivables were
supportable by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

are considered material if,

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B 2B RS (&)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B % B R ()

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Chan Tak Wai, Daniel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
meEERER

As at 31 December R+—=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
HizF FERT FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land use rights T {5 A 6 39,888 38,006
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MK 7 269,492 265,164
Investment properties wEE 8 14,289 13,285
Intangible assets A E 9 1,886 1,852
Long-term prepayments and deposits RHENREBERES 14 44,700 4,272
Investment in an associated company R E QAR E 3,602 2,256
Investment in a joint venture R—EEERENEKE 212 210
Deferred income tax assets RIERGEHEE 10 6,111 6,019
Total non-current assets FRBEERR 380,180 331,064
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 11 261,695 238,296
Trade and bills receivables BUWE SR NEZE 12 580,573 533,381
Amount due from an associated company [ U — S B & R 7 ;A 13 8,138 5,175
Amount due from a joint venture Bl —fE& & EFKIA 59 54
Tax recoverable a] U 8] 5 18 1,722 3,909
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %% ~ B B R EthEW KB 14 49,626 33,432
Short-term bank deposit ERITER 15 78 68
Cash and cash equivalents BehBESZEEAB 16 367,759 508,616
Total current assets REBEEASE 1,269,650 1,322,931
Total assets EEHRE 1,649,830 1,653,995
EQUITY E=
Equity attributable to owners ARAREEAEERER
of the Company
Share capital LN 19 7,265 7,238
Reserves 1 1,045,149 966,483
Final dividend proposed EERIRE 31 36,350 28,985
1,088,764 1,002,706
Non-controlling interests FEVER B = (28,324) (27,670)
Total equity ERE S 1,060,440 975,036

FRERERERER QA

—E-tFFR 6/



Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

ReEEEERE

As at 31 December R+—A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
liok:3 FET FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Deferred income tax liabilities FELEMSHEE 10 2,792 2,612
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELEE 2,792 2,612
Current liabilities REBAE
Bank borrowings RITEE 20 22,170 26,244
Trade payables B E SRR 21 230,530 208,895
Accruals and other payables JEETE A REMENFKIE 22 289,969 263,427
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTS R a& 29,335 19,514
Loans from non-controlling interests KEIERERERZZER 23 14,492 13,592
Dividends payable FEA R B 102 144,675
Total current liabilities REBEELAHE 586,598 676,347
Total liabilities BEHAE 589,390 678,959
Total equity and liabilities HEEREE 1,649,830 1,653,995

The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 172 were approved by E67 R 12BN EAMBBREN T —N\F=
the Board of Directors on 28 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf. At \BEEZSeETHUTEERE

BEo
CHING Chi Fai CHING Tsun Wah
BEE TerE
Director Director
g EF

The notes on pages 73 to 172 are an integral part of these consolidated E73F172EHKM T AN S A MK MRHE
BBAL o

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
AERTHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—_Z—+&F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—t& —E-RF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Mt &t FER FAT
Revenue WA 5 1,863,559 1,698,005
Cost of sales 55 AR 24 (1,421,565) (1,243,783)
Gross profit EF 441,994 454,222
Distribution costs 73 88 FK AR 24 (207,567) (186,065)
Administrative expenses THAX 24 (97,220) (157,223)
Other income H g A 25 4,474 12,177
Operating profit &R 141,681 123,111
Finance income B U A 27 834 750
Finance costs BT 78 AR 27 (613) (905)
Share of profit of an associated company JE (5 — R B & A 5] & A 1,344 1,476
Share of profit of joint ventures [Efh& &% E T 2 "
Fair value gains on investment properties wEWMEZ NTFENS 8 — 66,996
Profit before income tax R Et P 15 B A% F 143,248 191,439
Income tax expenses FEHAX 29 (34,408) (42,355)
Profit for the year FERF 108,840 149,084
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hth 2@z (EiE)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified ~ B {4 AJft B M Z
to profit or loss a2 HH
Currency translation differences BB E =R 19,385 (15,828)
Total comprehensive income for the year £ E 2> H W H# % 128,225 133,256
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FEARSEF(E18)
Owners of the Company KATRHEEB A 108,923 157,443
Non-controlling interests AR = (83) (8,359)
108,840 149,084
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EaEzmEkE(FR)#8%8E:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE RSN 128,879 141,290
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR T = (654) (8,034)
128,225 133,256
Earnings per share attributable to EKATEEAEMN
owners of the Company (expressed in BREF (LLBWLYR)
HK cents)
Basic AR 30(a) 15.1 22.2
Diluted #E 30(b) 14.9 21.9

The notes on pages 73 to 172 are an integral part of these consolidated E73F 172 BN T AL S4 A MK MARHE
financial statements. BE A7 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERRBR

For the year ended 31 December

BET=A=t-

HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEEE AEW
Shares held
for the share Non-
Share  award scheme Share Other controlling Total
capital (the “Scheme”)  premium  reserves  Sub-total interests equity
R 17 22 By &t &
(T5H&81) ™
A HEZRGL KHEE HbFEE PN FEERER s
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FTERT TER FET FET FET
Balance at R-E-RE
1 January 2016 —B-Rz&# 7,054 — 595,679 428,281 1,031,014 (19,636) 1,011,378
Comprehensive income/  2E W/ (FiE)
(loss)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEFRF/(BE) — — — 157,443 157,443 (8,359) 149,084
Other comprehensive Hih2m (7)),
(loss)/income &
Currency translation BEEmE
differences =8 — — —  (16,153)  (16,153) 325 (15,828)
Total comprehensive 2EWE(FB)
income/(loss) ok — — — 141,290 141,290 (8,034) 133,256
Exercise of share options IR
(Note 19) (Hte#19) 184 — 11,226 — 11,410 — 11,410
Purchase of shares for the SEITEAZ
Scheme (Note 18(b)) BRAD (B3 18(b) — (1,038) — — (1,038) — (1,038)
Final dividend relating to “E-RFEY
2015 KRHARR B — — — (21,173) (21,173) — (21,173)
Interim dividend relatingto —Z—REEFZ
2016 hEIAR 2 — — — (14,200) (14,200) — (14,200)
Special dividend relatingto  —ZE—A~EE 2
2016 (Note 31) R B (B 5E31) — — —  (144,597) (144,597) — (144,597)
Balance at 31 December ~ RZ=Z— <%
2016 +=ZA=+-8
k- 7,238 (1,038) 606,905 389,601 1,002,706 (27,670) 975,036

The notes on pages 73 to 172 are an integral part of these consolidated

FBEINENNERREFFRAVBHRINE

financial statements. BEE D o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December

Attributable to owners of the Company

RS

(%)

HET-_A=+—HIFE

EAREEAENL
Shares held Non-
Share for the Share Other controlling Total
capital Scheme premium reserves Sub-total interests equity
BT
BA  HEZRG RORE HtFEE Nt FERER AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT THERT TERT THER FEx FE R
Balance at R-Z—t#F
1 January 2017 —B—Rz#&& 7,238 (1,038) 606,905 389,601 1,002,706 (27,670) 975,036
Comprehensive income/  2E K/ (FE)
(loss)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERM/(FE) — — — 108923 108,923 (83) 108,840
Other comprehensive Htr2mEUki
income/(loss) (&#)
Currency translation REHRE
differences E58 — — — 19,956 19,956 (571) 19,385
Total comprehensive 2ENE(FB)
income/(loss) R — — — 128,879 128,879 (654) 128,225
Exercise of share options i
(Note 19) (Ht5%19) 27 — 1,633 — 1,660 — 1,660
Purchase of shares for the SFEITEAZBR R
Scheme (Note 18(b)) (K7 5F18(b)) — (1,051) - — (1,051) - (1,051)
Final dividend relating to —E-REEZ
2016 (Note 31) ~EMRE (H3E31) — — — (28,9300 (28,930 — (28,930
Interim dividend relatingto ~ —ZE—+EE 7
2017 (Note 31) h R R (A 31) — - —  (14,500)  (14,500) —  (14,500)
Balance at R-ZE—t#F
31 December 2017 +=ZA=+-H
2R 7,265 (2,089) 608,538 475,050 1,088,764 (28,324) 1,060,440

FBEINENNERREFFRAVBHRINE

‘B -

The notes on pages 73 to 172 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEERER

For the year ended 31 December #HE+-—A=+—HLLFE

/2 Ming Fai International Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2017

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
lioE:3 FERT FET
Cash flows from operating activities RETEBNHEESRE
Cash generated from operations KEEBFEBNRE 32(a) 130,394 45,128
Interest paid EATAE 27 (613) (905)
Income tax paid EEMER (23,595) (33,785)
Net cash generated from operating RETHMERLFE
activities 106,186 10,438
Cash flows from investing activities REZBNEERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAWME BERZMHE (26,987) (40,158)
Purchase of land use rights B T AR (105) —
Purchase of intangible assets BABREE (1,566) (397)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE KRR
plant and equipment B 32(b) 498 4,795
Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —EM B QA TEN IR (38,252) —
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of HE—RBARELEY
a subsidiary BeRNFE 32(c) — 259,51
Interest received RPN 27 834 750
Dividends received from an associated company & U — &1 B & 2 7 A% & 180 192
Net cash inflow arising from dissolution of B —HeEhtEMELE
a joint venture ZHBEMAFEE — 14
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE(FTA) 8
investing activities BEFH (65,398) 224,707
Cash flows from financing activities RMEIBNEERE
Purchase of shares under the Scheme BIEAEBEE 2K G (1,051) (1,038)
Proceeds from borrowings BEFSHIE 32(d) 30,000 60,000
Repayments of borrowings BEEE 32(d) (34,074) (89,734)
Short-term bank deposit with maturity over ZIEA AR = E A /52 5
3 months HRITFR (10) (69)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company ENARAREAE ARE (188,003) (35,339)
Proceeds from loans from non-controlling KEFIZERERERDN
interests P15 5008 32(d) 900 1,005
Decrease in restricted cash Z R3] 2R — 34,998
Proceeds from exercise of share options TTE B ERSRIE 18(a) 1,660 11,410
Net cash used in financing activities MEIBHMARSFE (190,578) (18,767)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BHeRBELEEER
cash equivalents CRLZ) /8 insF 48 (149,790) 216,378
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of F ¥R & KR &
the year Z(EIAR 508,616 295,693
Exchange gain/(loss) on cash RehkBE2SEEEN
and cash equivalents & 5 Ues, (&518) 8,933 (3,455)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of EXNBEERES
the year Z{EER 16 367,759 508,616
The notes on pages 73 to 172 are an integral part of these consolidated SE73E172B &M T A EHRAMBHRERHE
financial statements. BEEL D o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
meBEHRRME

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sales of amenity products and accessories and
the distribution and retail business of cosmetics and fashion accessories
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 May 2007
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law (2007 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. Its registered address is at
the offices of M&C Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309GT, Ugland
House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
board of directors (the “Board”) on 28 March 2018.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the Group consisting
of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, which are carried at fair values.

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments
for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2017:

J Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses —
Amendments to HKAS 12,

o Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle —
Amendments to HKFRS 12, and

. Disclosure initiative — amendments to HKAS 7.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on
the amounts recognised in prior periods. Most of the
amendments will also not affect the current or future periods.
The amendments to HKAS 7 require disclosure of changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, see Note 32(d).

/4 Ming Fai International Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2017
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group's assessment of the impact of these new standards
and interpretations is set out below.

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’

The new standard addresses the classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets.

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities and
does not expect the new guidance to have a significant impact
on the classification and measurement of its financial assets.
There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit
or loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been transferred from HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and have not been
changed. Further, the new rules introduced for hedge accounting
is not relevant as the Group currently does not apply hedge
accounting.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses rather than
only incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS 39. It applies
to financial assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,
contract assets under HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers, lease receivables, loan commitments and certain
financial guarantee contracts. Based on the assessment
undertaken to date, the Group expects it may result in an earlier
recognition of credit losses.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EREFHEEBE@
POLICIES (Continued)
() New standards and interpretations not yet () KERHGzHITERNRRE

adopted (continued)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (Continued)

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are expected to
change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about its
financial instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of
the new standard.

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2018. The Group will apply the new rules
retrospectively from 1 January 2018, with the practical expedients
permitted under the standard. Comparatives for 2017 will not be
restated.

HKFRS 15, ’‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for
goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction
contracts and the related literature. The new standard is based on
the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good
or service transfers to a customer. The standard permits either a
full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for the

adoption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

BEASHBEEHME@

(c) New standards and interpretations not yet

(0 REMzHATEARRE

adopted (continued)

HKFRS 15, ’‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’ (Continued)

Management is currently assessing the effects of applying the
new standard on the Group's consolidated financial statements
and has identified the application of HKFRS 15 may result in the
identification of separate performance obligations which could
affect the timing of the recognition of revenue.

More detailed assessment will be carried out by the Group to
estimate the impact of the new rules on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2018. The Group intends to adopt the standard
using the modified retrospective approach which means that the
cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognised in retained
earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that comparatives will not be
restated.

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in almost all
leases being recognised on the consolidated balance sheet, as the
distinction between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased
item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The
only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for Group’s
operating leases. As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of HK$18,578,000, see
Note 33(b).
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(d)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (continued)

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’ (Continued)

However, the Group has not yet assessed the adjustments, if any,
that are necessary, for example, because of the change in the
definition of the lease term and the different treatment of
variable lease payments and of extension and termination
options. It is therefore not yet possible to estimate the amount of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities that will have to be
recognised on adoption of the new standard and how this may
affect the Group’s consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and classification of cash flows going forward.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years commencing
on or after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not
intend to adopt the standard before its effective date. The Group
intends to apply the simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group (refer to Note

2(e)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated balance
sheet respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This is
generally the case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see (iv)
below), after initially being recognised at cost.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures. The classification depends on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor, rather than the
legal structure of the joint arrangement. The Group has
investments in joint ventures.

Joint ventures

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method (see (iv) below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXENBEEHEME@
POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Principles of consolidation and equity d EHREZESTEN @
accounting (Continued)

(iv) Equity accounting (iv) Bm &7

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group's
share of movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is
tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2(m).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(v)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve within equity attributable
to owners of the Group.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate
is reduced but joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ERBFBEHE@
POLICIES (continued)
(e) Business combinations (e) ¥%K&4f

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all MEBEEKAHBOFER KRB

business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments @t AR MTHA2RAWERATL

or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the Bt HMEE - WENE QAR

acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the: BeiE:

. fair values of the assets transferred; . BEEREEENRLTE:

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired . WX EE AMEER
business; a8E:

. equity interests issued by the Group; . REBPTREITHRKE

e fairvalue of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent e HARERHEMELENEM
consideration arrangement; and BEEXBGEATE: &

. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the . Z M B A R E AL AT IF AT
subsidiary. B AR HE A F1E -

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities EEBASHFDPRUWENERE

assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions, E FAENEBENMAREAE (B

measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The BREMBFIINER T) AR KEZEA

Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired REARNTFEELOEE - KB

entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or & Bl U B8 B A (B 3k FE 1R R R 5

at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the DEU B TR EA H R EES

acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. DRELEERNKBEELBNEM

IR R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

BEASHBEEHME@

(e) ¥B&6tum

(e) Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

o consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in

the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value
of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

84 Ming Fai International Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2017

2

BEASHBEEHME@

(f)

(9)

(h)

BB ®mER

KK B AR 2 E RAK AR E
IR - RABREKENEEREGE
AeMBARMNEERARRRE
Uit Bl B e Ml B T AR

BUBEBEREZKRER  HERH
REERERKEHHEZWME R
AlZEZEBALE IWMBEHKRE
RBILMBRERZEEER R
EUMBHRRARKREARNEEF
BE(EEEE)NEKEE  NBAHR
ZEWEREZREETTIRAE R

Al ©

DERE
SERELHHEM 2R AE
BB R R
EEH-H- XEEERRE (R
EARARRTEEHHENR
)W R A R B
FE-

Sl E

(i) WERZIEE

B NG AR SRR
FBMERAREREY
MEMEEGEBERENE
BIHEEB D& 58
B 75 R AR D R A9 1) Bt
AEEE 25 E (8
ZDELTE

(i) X5 RAEeF
IR HRAXH B LR
BEMBEAOEER M
BRAEXRERNEEN -

AEEZER I RIRFRE
RHENIINEAENELE
ENBEMEEANELRE
TR A 2 ERE R P HER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ERETFHEEBE @
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) MM E (@)

(i) ZEE 2 &
DEEEEARNEIEEN
ESBEER(EPYEM
MEBKABREENKEE
BAMER) 1 XA R P BN
N BRUTHTABRESE
S8 -

(h) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

income and expenses for each consolidated
statement of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
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acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Currency translation differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

HERERERERLAA —T—+FFH 85



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Foreign currency translation (continued)

()

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or
loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group's ownership interest in associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control) the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as
a separate asset is recognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial year in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

0]

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use and is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Depreciation for buildings is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate cost over its estimated useful lives of 20 years.

Depreciation for other property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost
over their estimated useful lives, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of 10 years or lease period

Plant and machinery 10%-33%

Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 33%
Computer equipment 33%

The assets’ residual value and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction or pending installation, and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction including borrowing costs attributable to the
construction during the period of construction. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until such time
as the relevant assets are completed and ready for intended use.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

(k)

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Cost represents up-front prepayments
made for the rights to use the land for periods varying from 20 to
50 years.

Amortisation of land use rights is expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease or when there is impairment, the
impairment is expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both and is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
property is carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined annually by the external valuer. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in
the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices from less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed
annually by the external valuer with changes in fair values
recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this
item at the date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation
of property, plant and equipment. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EREFTBEHME@
POLICIES (continued)
() Intangible assets () BEEE
(i) Trademarks, club debentures and software () BE -SFEFREM

licence YT
Separately acquired trademarks, investment in club BEBRUNBAEEZ - @MES
debentures and software licences are shown at historical KENS ST EIRE LK
cost. These assets have a finite useful life and are carried at KY|E WEBERFRE
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. AR - WIRA AR R T #

R ERE SRR o

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to HEhERERETE U
allocate the cost of trademarks, investment in club A AR FEH5E10
debentures and software licences over their estimated FRAOEINET gMEHR
useful lives of 5 to 10 years. BRI R EANAE
(i) Brandname (i) BHEEHE
Brandname acquired in a business combination is REBKAHFESORES
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The brand MR E B BN A T ER
name has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less R MmBEEBEEE A EREH
accumulated amortisation and impairment. AR ML AR 2 5 # 8 &
BB S AR -
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method RNREL BB EETFH
over the expected life of the brand name of 10 years. 10FAEAEFENE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

BEASHBEEHME@

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets

(m) FEMEENRE

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries, an
associated company or joint ventures is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary or associated company
in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n) Financial assets — loans and receivables

(i)

(ii)

Classification

The Group's financial assets are loans and receivables.
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. If collection of the amounts is expected in
one year or less they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise trade and bills receivables,
amount due from an associated company, amount due
from a joint venture, deposits and other receivables, short-
term bank deposit and cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Financial assets — loans and receivables
(Continued)

(iii) Measurement
Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair values
plus transaction costs and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a 'loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. When a
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
accounts for the receivables.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is assigned to individual items of inventory on the
basis of weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw material, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling and distribution
costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade, bills and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. See Note
2(n) for further information about the Group’s accounting for the
recognition and measurement of receivables and Note 2(p) for a
description of the Group's impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks with original maturities of three months or less.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods or services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are
unpaid. Trade payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are unsecured, recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

BEASHBEEHME@

(u) Borrowings

() FE

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

BEASHBEEHME@

(v) Current and deferred income tax

(v) BN RIESE P18 %

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax law enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associated company operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statement. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, an associated
company and joint ventures, except for deferred tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long-service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

(ii) Bonus entitlements
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within
twelve months and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when they are settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EREFHEEBE@
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

(w) EERF )
(iii) Bk EM

(iii)) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. A
defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of
service and compensation.

The Group companies in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by relevant
government authorities for its employees in the PRC and
contribute to these plans based on certain percentage of
the salaries of the employees on a monthly basis, up to a
maximum fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by the
relevant government authorities.

The government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing and
future retired employees under these plans.

The group companies in Hong Kong participate in a
mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for its
employees in Hong Kong. MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme in accordance with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. Under the rules of MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are required to
contribute 5% of the employees’ salaries, up to a
maximum of HK$1,500 per employee per month. The
assets of MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the group companies in an independently administered
fund.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

BERSTHEME @
(w) Employee benefits (continued) (w) BERTF @
(iv) BEHL7EF

(iv) Termination benefits

(v)

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to a termination when the entity has a detailed
formal plan to terminate the employment of current
employee without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than 12 months after balance sheet date are
discounted to their present value.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments
(options) of the Company. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted:

o including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);

(v)
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example, the requirement for employees to save).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation (Continued)
Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting
period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

When the options are cancelled during vesting periods the
Group recognise immediately the amount that otherwise
would have been recognised for services received over the
remainder of the vesting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(w) Employee benefits (continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

When the options are modified, the Group will include the
incremental fair value granted in the measurement of the
amount recognised for services received as consideration
for the equity instruments granted. The incremental fair
value granted is the difference between the fair value of
the modified equity instrument and that of the original
equity instrument, both estimated as at the date of the
modification. If the modification occurs during the vesting
period, the incremental fair value granted is included in the
measurement of the amount recognised for services
received over the period from the modification date until
the date when the modified equity instruments vest, in
addition to the amount based on the grant date fair value
of the original equity instruments, which is recognised over
the remainder of the original vesting period. If the
modification occurs after vesting date, the incremental fair
value granted is recognised immediately.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to
the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the
parent entity accounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(y)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the management’s best estimate of
the present value of the expenditures required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminated
sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group's activities as described below. The amount of
revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. The Group
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of
each arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(y) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(2)

(i) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when the title to the goods
has been passed to the customer, which is at the date
when the customer receives and accepts the goods, and
collectability of the related receivables is reasonably
assured.

Revenue is stated net of provision for sales returns.
Provision for sales returns is made by the Group upon the
delivery of goods to the customers when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred
to the customers.

(ii) Rental income
Rental income from investment properties is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease term.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Lease (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentive received from the lessor) are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EREFHEEBE@

POLICIES (continued)

(aa) R &

(aa) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company'’s shares are acquired from the market by
the Scheme (Note 18(b)), the total consideration of shares
acquired from the market (including any directly attributable
incremental costs) is presented as shares held for the Scheme and
deducted from total equity.

(ab) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company'’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HK$ and US dollar
("US$"). The majority of assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB, HK$ and US$, and there are no
significant assets and liabilities denominated in other
currencies. The Group is subject to foreign exchange rate
risk arising from future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities which are denominated in
a currency other than HK$ or RMB, which are the
functional currencies of the major operating companies
within the Group.

As HK$ is pegged to US$, management believes that the
exchange rate risk for translations between HK$ and US$
do not have a material impact to the Group. The exchange
rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

This currency exposure is managed primarily through
sourcing raw materials denominated in the same currency.
The Group has not considered it appropriate to
substantially hedge against currency risks through forward
exchange contracts upon consideration of the currency risk
involved and the cost of obtaining such cover.

At 31 December 2017, if HK$ had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against the RMB, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$2,545,000, higher or lower (for the year
ended 31 December 2016: post-tax profit of
HK$2,257,000, higher or lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange differences on translation of RMB
denominated net payables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against the US$, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$9,176,000, higher or lower (for the year
ended 31 December 2016: post-tax profit of
HK$11,758,000, higher or lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange differences on translation of US$
denominated net payables.

Interest rate risk

The Group has cash balances placed with reputable banks
and financial institutions, which generate interest income
for the Group.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Details of the Group's
borrowings have been disclosed in Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risk.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic
basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking into
consideration of refinancing, renewal of existing positions,
and alternative financing. Based on these scenarios, the
Group calculates the impact on profit of a defined interest
rate shift. For each simulation, the same interest rate shift
is used. The scenarios are run only for assets and liabilities
that represent the major interest-bearing positions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Based on the simulations performed, the impact on post-
tax profit of a 100 basis-point shift would be a maximum
increase/decrease of HK$940,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017 (for the year ended 31 December 2016
HK$285,000) mainly as a result of change in interest rates
on short-term bank deposits and bank borrowings.

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk and
commodity price risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, short-
term bank deposits, restricted cash, amount due from an
associated company, amount due from a joint venture, as
well as credit exposures to trade and bills receivables and
other receivables. Credit risk is managed on a group basis,
management has policies in place to monitor the exposures
to these credit risks on an ongoing basis.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers based on their past repayment patterns,
latest business developments and other factors. The
Group's historical experience in collection of trade and bills
receivables falls within the recorded allowances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BXERERE@
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) () MR MEZE @
(iv) Credit risk (Continued) (iv) EERE R &)
The table below shows the credit limit and balance of the TEEHNRAKEBEEAD R
five major debtors at 31 December 2017 and 31 December —E—t+tFE+=-A=+—8H
2016. RZZ—RFTA=+—
AZEERERER -
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Counterparty Credit limit Utilised Credit limit Utilised
HES FERHE 2 A EERAE 2
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAT FAT
A 38,000 36,409 27,000 26,258
B 32,000 28,539 32,000 31,312
C 32,000 26,549 32,000 31,069
D 26,000 25,255 24,000 23,782
E 26,000 24,041 12,000 10,852
F 22,000 16,295 22,000 20,307
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past KRBEHTERENSHEE
due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the JEEEEN2RBEEHB
counterparty’s default history. The current portion of trade THHE R GO R EHE T4 o &
and bills receivables which are not impaired are analysed BENEKEZESEZLEE
below: BImEBE DT
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade and bills receivables EWESERRRERE
Customers accepted within the past 12 RidBE1218 8 NERD
months =5 48,428 14,182
Customers accepted beyond the past 12 B E121E A DA AT EE 4
months HmEF 311,134 287,197
Total @t 359,562 301,379
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HM¥KEREEE@®
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) () MR MEZE @
(iv) Credit risk (Continued) (iv) EE&E R &)
The short-term bank deposit and cash and cash equivalents SHRTEIALRE S RIR
are analysed below: CEEEEONTOT :

As at 31 December

R+=—HB=+—8H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEEER
Cash at banks and bank deposits RITIRE RIBITHER
Listed financial institutions ETh e R 365,663 503,182
Unlisted financial institutions LT riE 630 4,211
366,293 507,393
Cash on hand H& 1,466 1,223
Total ot 367,759 508,616
Short-term bank deposit EHIRITIFE R
Listed financial institution EhEmEE 78 68
(v) Liquidity risk () mBELERE
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining EEZRBHELRREER
sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an BEERVE AL ELEREHN
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The Group CEREEEMEIRERESR
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient L AREBRBSHEZRBFRER
cash. WRERHES ZEEM -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHRARERE@m
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) B#EREREE @
(v) Liquidity risk (Continued) (v) WEEZERE @

As at 31 December 2017, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group approximated HK$367,759,000 (31 December
2016: HK$508,616,000).

The tables below analyse the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Specifically, as at 31 December 2017, for bank borrowings
which contained a repayment on demand clause which
could be exercised at the banks' sole discretion, the
balances had been reclassified as current liabilities. The
analysis shows the cash outflow based on earliest period in
which the Group can be required to pay, that is if the
lender were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BMBERBREREm
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) () MR MEZE @
(v) Liquidity risk (Continued) (v) FREEZEE &)
Between Between
On Less than 1 and 2 and Over
demand 1year 2years 5years 5years Total

1226 2E5F
ZREREE 1FRA AL 2B S5EME et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT  THERT  TERL TAERT THERT TAEL

At 31 December R-ZE—tHF

2017 +=-—A=
Borrowings EE

— principal portion ~ — &A% # 5 22,170 — — — — 22,170
Trade payables FERTE SRR — 230,530 — — — 230,530
Accruals and other  [EFT & B & Efth fE

payables (NEe5 — 157,300 — — — 157,300
Loans from PSP

non-controlling i

interests B® 14,492 — — — — 14,492
Dividends payable PR B — 102 — — — 102
At 31 December R-B—RE

2016 +=A=+—
Borrowings EE

— principal portion ~ — AR 4& &5 26,244 — — — — 26,244
Trade payables FETE SRR — 208,895 — — — 208,895
Accruals and other  JE&HE B & H fh fE

payables 3% 18 — 141,481 — — — 141,481
Loans from KB IR

non-controlling =

interests B® 13,592 — — — — 13,592
Dividends payable &1 i% & — 144,675 — — — 144,675
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BMHEREEGm
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) () MR MEZE @
(v) Liquidity risk (Continued) (v) WEEZERE @
The table below analyses the bank borrowings of the TREBRRBRERAREZEAY
Group into relevant maturity groupings based on the BT AT ARSE
remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the SEERAEE AR IR
contractual maturity date without taking into consideration TEE BERPTEANEKE
the effect of repayment on demand clause, while interest SRKERETOTZE  MHA
payments are computed using contractual rates. RNRAELFEREHE -
Between Between
Within 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1825 2ESE
1R | 2B S5FENE Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FET  FET TFTET TER
As at 31 December 2017 R=ZF—+t &
+=B=+-8
Borrowings: ==
— principal portion —AR&Hn 3,921 3,976 10,168 4,105 22,170
— interest portion —MEE S 585 473 1,010 111 2,179
4,506 4,449 11,178 4,216 24,349
As at 31 December 2016 A =T — XK F
+=A=+-—~H
Borrowings: BE:
— principal portion — K&K 4,083 3,977 9,854 8,330 26,244
— interest portion — F B Z5 543 430 810 346 2,129
4,626 4,407 10,664 8,676 28,373
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total equity.
Management considers a gearing ratio of not more than 30% as
reasonable.
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As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT AT
Borrowings BE 22,170 26,244
Total equity MR 1,060,440 975,036
Gearing ratio BEARAELEX 2.1% 2.7%

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and above
balance required for working capital management are transferred
to interest bearing current accounts and time deposits, with
appropriate maturities to manage its overall liquidity position. As
at 31 December 2017, the Group maintains cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$367,759,000 (31 December
2016: approximately HK$508,616,000) that are expected to be
readily available to meet the cash outflows of its financial
liabilities.

LEBEBRBEHRRAEEESEE
FENReREG DEBEALAHE
FHBEZHEARERPRESRE
HoLEBHAEBRSESM -
R—_ZE—+t&+-_A=+—8"
AEEZRESRBASEEEEY
%367,759,0008 T (ZF — " F +
— A=+ —8: #508,616,000/%
) TEHEUREHESRAEEZ
WE M -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities
including cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposit,
trade and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, amount
due from an associated company, amount due from a joint
venture, borrowings, trade payables, dividends payable, accruals
and other payables and loans from non-controlling interests,
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

See Note 8 for disclosures of investment properties that are
measured at fair values at 31 December 2017.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated financial
statements are continually evaluated and based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addresses
below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade and bills
receivables. Provisions are applied to trade and bills receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of impairment requires the use of
judgement and estimates.

Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of trade receivables and
provision for impaired receivables in the year in which such estimate has
been changed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Board.
The Board reviews the Group’s internal reports in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. The Board has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and distribution
of amenity products. From a geographical perspective, the Board
assesses the performance based on the Group’s revenue by
geographical location in which the customer is located. The Group is
also engaged in the distribution and retail business of cosmetics
products and fashion accessories in the PRC through retail chain outlets.
Altogether, the Group has two reportable segments: (a) manufacturing
and distribution business of amenity products and (b) distribution and
retail business of cosmetics and fashion accessories.

The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of profit before income tax, share of profit of an
associated company, share of profit of joint ventures and fair value
gains on investment properties.

4

FRERERERER QA

B R & H E @

BHRESRARRERE

AEERBEEVEZERARZEATHKE
BRNFEREKE SRR R EEOR
BEREE-WHREHEIBEREEMBETR
T—EA B R E - BARERE S
R R EBEHRER - BB ERER
HIBT R A AT -

HWEHEBANNREMGEFTEE A1F
BMERKTERRMGIBELREDF
[Z FE W 5 B R E R T (B B R AR RR BROR
B -

THEER

EEeRIBEERRE -EFalA
AEEOABREAFHEEERDELE
R-BEGENBERERELEDE -

AEETBERERERDHETARE
BeoewEREAE EFGFEHESE
BERBEASENTF A2 WA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 9EER @
Information provided to the Board is measured in a manner consistent MEFTE2HRMNENKALELES P BR
with that of the consolidated financial statements. X—HAAE=E-
Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial terms. DEENEER R EERRET T
Depreciation and amortisation charges are apportioned with reference ENEHEERNZ2EREBINTERLHE
to respective segment revenue from external customers. Assets and PEWAFUSIE AEBNEERE
liabilities of the Group are allocated by reference to the principal BEIN2BRAERMKEEBNTETS
markets in which the Group operates. EITHED -
Geographical i &

Distribution and retail
business of cosmetics and

Manufacturing and distribution business of amenity products fashion accessories Others
PURBELARR
RERIHEEZAREY B 1 B 6 SR 2t
Other
Asia
Pacific
North Hong regions  Others Hong Sub-

America Europe ThePRC  Kong Australia (Notei) (Noteii) Sub-total The PRC  Kong total Total

Hitr
DRBE Hit
EEN  ®N  hE FE RN (WE) (W) M B BB M st

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEr TEx TEx TEx FEx TEx TEx TEx FTEx TEx TEx FTEx TE=x

Year ended 31 BZ-Z-tFf
December 2017 +=-A=+-H
tEE
Segment revenue XL ON 404,047 198,146 603,291 300,168 51,262 287,491 4,051 1,848,456 16,124 210 16,334 — 1,864,790
Inter-segment revenue % 4B I A — —  (863) — - — — (863)  (368) —  (368) - (1,231

Revenue from external R E M BE P
customers 9N 404,047 198,146 602,428 300,168 51,262 287,491 4,051 1,847,593 15,756 210 15,966 — 1,863,559

Earnings/(loss) before K& S - KB

interest, taxes, FER

depreciation and BHAH

amortisation BH/(B8) 47,339 21,578 37,615 27,885 4,186 39,286 819 178,708 3,158  (765) 2,393 (60) 181,041
Depreciation neE (7,296) (3,578) (10,878) (5420)  (926)  (5,191) (73) (33362  (506) (8) (514) (2.861) (36,737)
Amortisation #i (4790  (235) (712)  (356) (61) (341) (5) (2189  (267) (700  (337) (97) (2,623)
Finance income FHIA - — 365 462 - 3 - 830 3 - 3 1 834
Finance costs B ISR A — — (27)  (557) — (29) — (613) - - - - (613)

Segment profitfloss)  KitETEHAT S
beforeincome tax R F|/(F18) 39564 17,765 26,363 22,014 3,199 33,728 741 143374 2,388 (843) 1,545 (3,017) 141,902
Share of profit of EfE—ME

an associated BERT

company gl 13
Share of profit of ElE—EaE

ajoint venture LEEF ’
Income tax expenses  FTEHiE X (34,408)
Profit for the year REFET 108,840
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical (continued)

Manufacturing and distribution business of

5 2¥EERm@m

b & (%)

Distribution and retail
business of cosmetics and

amenity products fashion accessories Others
PHERBELMRR
HERIHERARES R 1 L 8 36 Hity
Other Inter-
Hong locations Hong Sub- segment
ThePRC  Kong Australia (Noteiii) Sub-total ThePRC ~ Kong total elimination Total
HititE AEB
HE B BN (i) Nt HE E Nt 1B Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TExr TEx TEx FTHEx TEx TEx TEx FTEx TExn TEr T#ER
As at 31 December 2017 R-Z—-t%
+=A=+-8
Total assets AERE 1,001,271 691,349 1,484 99,388 1,793,492 49,764 1,843 51,607 47,088 (242,357) 1,649,830
Include: BE:
Investment in i isik NG|
an associated company MRE — 3,602 — — 3,602 - — — — — 3,602
Investments in R-EEERERN
ajoint venture HE — — — 212 212 — — — — _ 212
Additions to non-current ERBDEERE
assets (other than deferred (EEFEHEE
income tax assets) BN 24516 2,915 — 39459 66,890 — 20 20 — — 66,910
Total liabilities BfERHE 404,562 141,834 160 51,814 598370 125887 52,722 178,609 54,768  (242,357) 589,390

FRERERERER QA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SEERm@m
Geographical (continued) & (@)
Distribution and retail
business of cosmetics and
Manufacturing and distribution business of amenity product fashion accessories Others
AEREE MR R
HERDHBERAREH B #i % 7% Hit
Other
Asia
Pacific
North Hong regions  Others Hong
America  Europe ThePRC ~ Kong Australia  (Notei) (Noteij) Sub-total The PRC  Kong Sub-total Total
Hft
DAME B
EEM OB B BA BN (WEE) (W) Net B BB NG @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TEr TEr TEx TEx TEx FTEx TEx TEx TEx T T TEn
Year ended 31 BE-Z—XF
December 2016 +-A=+—A
EFE
Segment revenue ETON 402,317 174,442 521,249 262,730 49,787 251,791 4,929 1,667,245 32,187 300 32,487 — 1,699,732
Inter-segment revenue % ¥ UK A — — (1,208 (118 — — —  (1,326)  (401) — (401) — (1,727
Revenue from external R E N BEF
customers B A 402,317 174,442 520,041 262,612 49,787 251,791 4,929 1,665919 31,786 300 32,086 — 1,698,005
Earnings/(loss) before K EHFI 8 - A -
interest, taxes, E -BHR
depreciation, REMEL
amortisation and fair A P AT
value gains on Maw,/
investment properties (/& 18) 60,211 18990 39,735 33,626 3,361 32,679 810 189,412 (33,652) (1,757) (35409) 7,651 161,654
Depreciation nE (7,038) (3,052) (9,098) (4,594) (871)  (4,405) (86) (29,144) (1,555) (146)  (1,701)  (5,314) (36,159)
Amortisation 5] (468) (203) (605) (305) (58) (293) (6)  (1,938) (270) (78) (348) (98)  (2,384)
Finance income FHMA — - 623 124 - - — 747 3 — 3 — 750
Finance costs BB — — 1) (605) — (39) — (665) — — — (2409 (905)
Segment profitfloss)  KEtFTFHLATH
before income tax R (FE) 52705 15735 30,634 28,246 2,432 27,942 718 158,412 (35474) (1,981) (37,455) 1,999 122,956
Share of profitofan  fEf —FIEE&
associated company A & 1,476
Share of profit of joint ~ [E(EAE %
ventures i A I
Fair value gains on BEMEL
investment properties 72 F{E 4z
(Note 8) (Kt:F8) 66,996
Income tax expenses  FT{SHiE (42,355)
Profit for the year KEEZGF 149,084
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2¥ER@
Geographical (continued) & (@)
Distribution and retail business
Manufacturing and distribution business of cosmetics and fashion
of amenity products accessories Others
PERTBENMMMR
HERSHERAGRES BREHZS Hih
Other Inter-
Hong locations Sub- Hong Sub- segment
The PRC Kong Australia  (Note i) total  The PRC Kong total elimination Total
HitE N
hE B M (i) M RE BB N g @5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TExL TEx TExT TR TEx TEx TET TER TER TELT TERL

As at 31 December 2016 RZE—X"F+=A
=+-A
Total assets EEBE 895,131 818,990 1,558 54,872 1,770,551 56,532 1,796 58,328 113,851 (288,735) 1,653,995
Include: B
Investment in R—BELQRH
an associated company "E — 2,25 — — 2,256 — — — — — 2,256
Investments in REERER
joint ventures RE — — — 210 210 — — — — — 210
Additions to non-current  3EREVEE
assets (other than REGET
deferred income tax MEHEE
assets) B4M) 25,245 8,638 10 6,636 40,529 836 — 836 — — 41,365
Total liabilities BfEEE 339,281 313,300 16 8,414 661,011 122,686 53,655 176,341 130,342 (288,735) 678,959

Notes: Baz -

(i) Other Asia Pacific regions mainly include the Macau Special Administrative (i) Hihgs Kile T EEEF EBEFE R
Region of the PRC, Japan, United Arab Emirates, Thailand, the Philippines, THE - BA uABAERR  H
Malaysia, Singapore, Dubai and India. Bl SEAEE - FARED N mE

RENE -

(i) Others mainly include Morocco and Algeria. (i) HUEBZIEESS MME&FE -

(i) Other locations mainly include Singapore and India. (i) EMmEEZEEFME LEE -

Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to land use rights, RSB EERERRAE T HE AR

property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and long-term mE BELRB BERVEERKERE

prepayments and deposits. NFIBERES -
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6 LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating
lease payments.

+ i fE AR

AEERLHERBZ RS EBNEE
HERRK -

2017 2016

—E-tF  —FAF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At 1 January w—A—H 38,006 41,740
Additions NE 105 —
Amortisation (Note 24) B8 (M it 24) (1,059) (1,068)
Exchange differences PEH =58 2,836 (2,666)
At 31 December Rt+_A=+—8 39,888 38,006

Amortisation of the Group’s land use rights has been charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

AEELHMEREZBECNEAEE
WaERNE  FBEMT

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Cost of sales S5 AR 230 232
Distribution costs 2K R 732 738
Administrative expenses TR X 97 98
1,059 1,068

As at 31 December 2017, certain land use rights of aggregate net
carrying value of approximately HK$1,820,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$1,744,000) were pledged as securities for banking facility of the
Group (Note 20).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 YVE BERSKE
Furniture
Leasehold Motor and Computer Plantand Construction
Lland Buildings improvements  vehicles  fixtures equipment machinery  in progress Total
HEMX B K Bz &k
1t BT e A= kB BER BE  ERIE @it

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 — HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAR TARL TAR ThT TEx ThET  TET TERL

At 1 January 2016 RZB-XRE
—-A—-H
Cost i AR 35,208 190,056 92,287 20,645 16,721 18,585 209,655 1,408 584,565
Accumulated depreciation Rt E
and impairment RHE (1,032) (61,624) (64,792) (14,948) (13,453)  (16,269) (132,784) — (304,902)
Net book amount REEE 34,176 128,432 27,495 5,697 3,268 2,316 76,871 1,408 279,663
Year ended BE-E-RE
31 December 2016 +=ZA=+-8
LEE
Opening net book amount ] BR E /F & 34,176 128,432 27,495 5,697 3,268 2316 76,871 1,408 279,663
Additions NE — — 8,748 5,719 2,011 224 22,502 1,046 40,250
Disposals (Note 32(b)) & (75 32(0)) — — (387) — (49) —  (4,606) — (5042
Depreciation (Note 24) W& Wi it24) (1,086)  (9,193) (5927) (2,685 (2,080)  (1,156) (14,032) —  (36,159)
Transfer upon completion  FEA 74 &2 — 2,421 — — — — — (2,421) —
Exchange differences EHEE —  (6352) (1,687) (218) (218) (105 (4,935 (33) (13,548)
Closing net book amount £ X BRI B & 33,090 115,308 28,242 8,513 2,932 1,279 75,800 — 265,164

At31December2016  R-E—XRE

/
+ZA=+-8
Cost DN 35,208 181,900 90,732 24177 17,475 17,748 182,706 — 549,946
Accumulated depreciation 2t E
and impairment LR E (2,118) (66,592) (62,490) (15,664) (14,543)  (16,469) (106,906) — (284,782)
Net book amount REFE 33,090 115,308 28,242 8,513 2,932 1,279 75,800 — 265,164
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 7 Y ¥ - BERZ#E @

Furniture
Leasehold  Motor and Computer Plantand
Land Buildings improvements vehicles fixtures equipment machinery Total
HENME BRR BER
i kS %% A= #E EHRE B @
HKS$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET THER TEr FTExT TFiEx TER TER TH#E=R
Year ended BE-Z-t%
31 December 2017 +ZA=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount ~ FEREFE 33,090 115,308 28,242 8,513 2,932 1,279 75,800 265,164
Additions NE - 368 3,704 2,569 553 1,582 18,211 26,987
Disposals (Note 32(b)) & (B2 32(0)) - - - (129 )] @ (386) (520)
Depreciation (Note 24) W& (Wit24) (1,085 (9.477) (6,443) (3,063)  (1,064) (1,025 (14,580) (36,737)
Exchange differences EREE — 6479 1,749 240 225 11 5794 14,598
Closing net book amount & K iR & 32,005 112,678 27,252 8,131 2,644 1,943 84,839 269,492
At 31 December 2017 R-B-—+fF
TZA=1-H
Cost R 35208 193,849 99,385 25277 19,173 20,342 210,118 603,352
Accumulated depreciation  2iHiTE
and impairment PYAED (3,203) (81,171) (72,133) (17,146) (16,529) (18,399)  (125,279) (333,860)
Net book amount EEFE 32,005 112,678 27,252 8,131 2,644 1,943 84,839 269,492
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 7 Y% - - BER%E @

Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment has been KEEHNYE MERZEBEHNITEDR
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as SEATEMKEXRIG  HFBEOT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cost of sales 5 & B A 22,585 20,943
Distribution costs Pal=10 N 4,482 3,966
Administrative expenses THRAX 9,670 11,250
36,737 36,159
As at 31 December 2017, certain property, plant and equipment with RZE—+F+_A=+—H #FE
aggregate net carrying value of approximately HK$67,154,000 (31 JHE#)67,154,0008 T(ZE — ~NF+ =
December 2016: HK$71,049,000) were pledged as securities for B=+—H:71,049,000/867T) 2 & T
banking facilities of the Group (Note 20). ¥ BMELIRETUNER EAEXEHE

RITAE Z R (HFEE20) -

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 REWHE
2017 2016
—E-tF  C—E—AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TAET FET
At 1 January w—H—H 13,285 207,104
Revaluation gain E Ak — 66,996
Disposal (Note 32(c)) H & (B iE32() — (260,000)
Exchange differences PEH =58 1,004 (815)
At 31 December RNt+-—A=+—8 14,289 13,285
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 8 KBEWMHEw
The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated LTHEERGEE 2K ERER

statement of comprehensive income:

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Rental income (Note 25) e WA (Haz25) 278 6,848
Direct operating expense arising from REEEHESWAZIKRENE S
investment properties that generate rental HELEMY
income (Note 24) (Kt at24) 48 31
(@  Independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties was (@ AEBEREVECDOHGEEMSBH
performed by the valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, to determine EAENEBEBAERATETSE
the fair value of the investment properties as at 31 December VihE O NEEREMER T —
2017 and 2016. The following table analyses the investment tERERZE—RFT+_A=1+—
properties carried at fair value. BZzAFE TRIODHEZRATFEST
RZIREMEMEDT -
Fair value hierarchy ATEER

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2017 using
R-—ZB—tHF+=ZA=+—H

AFEMN B E A
Quoted price

in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
B AHRNEE®R HMWEEN BEENFA
ERTSNRE TERRARE BEGAME
(B—#) (B=#) (F=4)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

Recurring fair value measurements: & H A FEH S :

Investment property REYE — 14,289 —
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 8 REWMEwmwm
(@)  (Continued) (@) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEEF @

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2016 using
WoF-—AF+=A=+—A

NEEFEHMER
Quoted price
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
= A AHRAEERL HEEZH EFEEMNA
ERTISZHMRE TTEZRARE BRHASR
(B—#H) (E=4) (B=%)
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAET
Recurring fair value measurements: & &4 A F(ExH &
Investment property EYHE — 13,285 —
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out REB ZHRFEFEZRRERERER 2 F
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change e EREEE 2 HERANT
in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were no transfers BEBERZEARER RERXN - F
between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year. — ZR=FoEMEER -
Level 2 fair values of completed investment properties have been CRTITEREMEZF_RAFEE
generally derived using the sales comparison approach. Sales — A E L BIAES L < #ir A &
prices of comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted LS ENEEEBRAEAEYXER
for differences in key attributes such as property size. The most BEFERENEZE TAFE o it
significant input into this valuation approach is price per square EFEAFEZEENEG AEE A
foot. FHRMER -
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 8 WKREWXEwm@m
(b) Details of the investment properties: (b) BB E 7 IS
Address of investment property Existing use Tenure
REYHE B B Al A® HH
Room 101, Chuntian Garden, No. 6, Lane 31 December 2017: Rental The property is held under
999, Loushanguan Road, Changning (31 December 2016: Rental) long term lease

District, Shanghai City, the PRC
PEEETRERE LEKIVEER —T—tF+-_A=+—H:HE MEDIRBERHHEHERH

HEXRIEE101E (Z2—RF+-_A=+—H:H8)

() At 31 December 2017, the future aggregate minimum lease 0 MRZEBE—+F+-_AF=+—H =«
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases of investment EFERBEITAZHEHIEEDELE
properties not recognised in the consolidated financial HEZEWR AR ZEHEEK AL
statements, which are receivable by the Group as follows: BANRGAVEREER)WNOT -

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Within one year —F R 168 590
Later than one year but no later than 5 years B —FEBTER L F — 633
168 1,223
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= A
ma

Bt 75 R R B = (&)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

9 EEEE

Investment
in club Software
Trademarks debentures Brandname licence Total
BE EREFRE mEERE  BMEEE @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAET FAET FAT
At 1 January 2016 R=ZE-"E-F—H
Cost R 1,277 968 16,636 6,996 25,877
Accumulated amortisation  Z 5 84
and impairment KoRE (769) (968) (16,636) (4,699) (23,072)
Net book amount REFE 508 — — 2,297 2,805
Yearended 31 December HBHZE-Z— A&
2016 +TZA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount ¥ BREVF{E 508 — — 2,297 2,805
Additions NE 31 — — 86 397
Amortisation (Note 24) BsH (0757 24) (193) — — (1,123) (1,316)
Exchange differences ERESE — — — (34) (34)
Closing net book amount & K R /F{E 626 — — 1,226 1,852
At 31 December 2016 RZB—RE
+=ZB=+—-H
Cost B 1,588 968 15,555 7,082 25,193
Accumulated amortisation  Z 5t 84
and impairment KRE (962) (968) (15,555) (5,856) (23,341)
Net book amount REFE 626 — — 1,226 1,852
Year ended 31 December HZE—-ZE—+F
2017 TZA=+t—-HLEE
Opening net book amount ¥ BREF & 626 — — 1,226 1,852
Additions NE 20 — — 1,546 1,566
Amortisation (Note 24) BsH (052 24) (179) — — (1,385) (1,564)
Exchange differences fE N =% - - - 32 32
Closing net book amount & K R /B {E 467 — — 1,419 1,886
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—t&
+=ZB=+—-H
Cost R 1,608 968 16,731 8,628 27,935
Accumulated amortisation  Z 5t 84
and impairment KRE (1,141) (968) (16,731) (7.209) (26,049)
Net book amount REFE 467 - - 1,419 1,886
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Amortisation of the Group's intangible assets have been charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

9 BEEBEm®W

AEERBVEAENEECONEAZER

BERMG - FHBOT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH& T FET

Administrative expenses THAX 1,564 1,316

10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes related to the same fiscal

authority. The offsetting amounts are as follows:

10 ELERTS

ERATEA RTINS AR AR
ERNAHEEEERE METHAEHR
W R R — BA DR BB - R R AT AT S R
EERBETREE EHESBET:

2017 2016

“®E-tF  —TA%H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Deferred income tax assets EEMSTHEE 6,111 6,019
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMSHEE (2,792) (2,612)
Deferred income tax assets, net BEMSHEEFT 3,319 3,407
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10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 10 EEFTEH @
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows: BEEFSHEP 2SS FENT :
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
At 1 January n—A—H 3,407 4,862
Recognised in the consolidated statement of Rize 2EREETNER
comprehensive income (Note 29) (Hiet29) (396) (1,874)
Derecognised by disposal of a subsidiary HE—BHBAREK FER
(Note 32(c)) (f 5t 32(c) — 729
Exchange differences PEH =% 308 (310)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—8H 3,319 3,407
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the REBERRB —MBEE EHRESNGTE
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within EHEEENBR FRNEEFMESHEE
the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: raEzEEmT
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTEHREE
Revaluation of
Accelerated tax investment
depreciation properties Total
MEBIETE REWEER wt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2016 R-Z-XE—-A—8 (719) (2,021) (2,740)
Recognised in the consolidated statement R4 4 2 E M E R
of comprehensive income R 912) 188 (724)
Derecognised by disposal of a subsidiary 5 — i B 2 AIEF 4R |- #ERR
(Note 32(c)) (Bt 7#32(c) 729 — 729
Exchange differences bE 5 = — 123 123
At 31 December 2016 N-EBE—XE+=-A=+-H (902) (1,710) (2,612)
Recognised in the consolidated statement R4 4 2 E M E R
of comprehensive income MR (51) — (51)
Exchange differences P =% — (129) (129)
At 31 December 2017 R=-B—-+tHE+=ZA=+-—H (953) (1,839) (2,792)
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10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 10 EEFFBH @)
Deferred income tax assets BELFEBERE
Decelerated tax
depreciation
WEBRERE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2016 R=-ZZB-—XE—H—H 7,602
Recognised in the consolidated statement of 4R A 2 MUk XK
comprehensive income A T R (1,150)
Exchange differences ME 3, = R (433)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—XRE+=ZA=+—H 6,019
Recognised in the consolidated statement of M 4R& 2 E W &= &
comprehensive income A i R (345)
Exchange differences ME W = 437
At 31 December 2017 NR-B—+tHE+=-A=+—H 6,111

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$10,529,000 as at 31 December
2017 (31 December 2016: HK$9,329,000) have not been recognised
for the withholding tax that would be payable on the remittance of
earnings of PRC subsidiaries. The related unremitted earnings totaled
HK$210,588,000 at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016:
HK$186,585,000), and the Group does not intend to remit these
unremitted earnings from the relevant subsidiary to the Company in the
foreseeable future.
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AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

11 INVENTORIES 1 78
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Raw materials R AR 107,518 87,559
Work in progress T8 R 10,895 9,941
Finished goods B 160,715 156,789
279,128 254,289
Less: Provision for obsolete inventories B BREFEBE (17,433) (15,993)
Inventories, net FEFHE 261,695 238,296
The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the year RERNFTABEREANTFTFEREALN B
amounted to approximately HK$1,044,838,000 (for the year ended 31 1,044,838,000/8 T (B E T —RF+=
December 2016: approximately HK$900,472,000). A=+—HBI1-FE : #900,472,0007% JT)
Direct written off of and provision made for obsolete inventories for the Bz _Z—+F+_-_A=+—HI1t#F
year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to HK$2,979,000 (2016: Er-EEMBEEMEEFREZNE
HK$5,800,000) and HK$2,473,000 (2016: HK$10,943,000) respectively. & Bl /52,979,0008 T( = Z — XN F ¢
These were recognised as an expense and included in ‘cost of sales’ in 5,800,0007% 7T) % 2,473,000 0 (=& —
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 7N 5 110,943,000 7T) © It F 1R &
X WEF AGREEERGEEZ TS K
NI
12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 12 BEREZERIARERE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Trade receivables JEUE 5 BR X 616,689 582,444
Bills receivables FEU R 5 2,619 2,466
619,308 584,910
Less: provision for impairment of receivables 3 : Ji& U 3% 18 6l (B 7 4 (38,735) (51,529)
Trade and bills receivables, net EWESEFREERFRE 580,573 533,381
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12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 12 BEREZRIARERE @
Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables by invoice date is as EUWE SRR N EZERLEZAHNRER
follows: ST :

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
1-30 days 1-30H 322,842 309,669
31-60 days 31-60H 136,471 99,866
61-90 days 61-90H 50,667 50,008
91-180 days 91-180 H 62,853 59,525
Over 180 days 180 H LA I 46,475 65,842
619,308 584,910
The credit period granted by the Group ranges from 15 days to 120 REBEBFRBETHEESHEN FI15BE120
days. H e
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE R AT
Denominated in: RUTE®ME :
— RMB —AR¥ 319,358 312,479
— US$ —ETT 226,290 207,612
— HK$ — AT 52,497 46,013
— Other currencies — H i g 21,163 18,806
619,308 584,910
The fair value of trade and bills receivables are as follows: EWESESREENAEENT :
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Trade and bills receivables JEUE SRR R E & 580,573 533,381
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12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, trade and bills receivables of approximately
HK$38,735,000 (31 December 2016: approximately HK$51,529,000)
are impaired and have been provided for. See Note 2(r) for information
about how impairment losses are calculated. Impairment losses are
recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income within
administrative expenses. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
impaired and provided for are credited against administrative expenses.
Receivables for which an impairment provision was recognised are
written off against the provision when there is no expectation of
recovering additional cash. As at 31 December 2017, the individually
impaired receivables mainly represent sales proceeds receivable of
HK$38,015,000 (31 December 2016: HK$51,230,000) from PRC
customers which have remained long overdue and management
considered the recoverability is remote.

As at 31 December 2017, trade and bills receivables of approximately
HK$221,011,000 (31 December 2016: approximately HK$232,002,000)
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of
these trade receivables by due date is as follows:

12

EWE S ERE

R_ZT—tF+_A=+—8 EK=E
S AN EIE#138,735,0008 T (—F —
NE+ZAH=+—H": %51,529,000%
T B R BURE R EL B o BT ER
EERFEZNERBLHEME2N - BE
BIERGEEZEKREROITERAS B ®
oo Y Bl S BT BB E I AT B S R R 1B
BRI - MBI EE W D58
%ﬁﬁ'HEﬁWM@%%MEWM

REBEERHE RZE—F+=ZA=
+—8" m%ﬁﬁﬁEMﬁw RIBEE
ERERKNTFEZEFEHEANBEEMER
1838,015,0008 L (ZE— A "F+ A=
+—H :51,230,0008 ) BEEER A
A] Uk B A e

AR EE m)

RZE—+tF+=ZA=+—H B@H
HIEﬁEME% %%mﬁffm
pmﬂow%m( T-RE+=ZA=
+ — B : #9232,002,0007% JT ) ° It & 8
ﬁLIﬁLﬁﬁﬁmy%zﬁﬁ@ %
BRI ERKIE ZEFINERD T

T
2017 2016

—E-+tF —E-REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FET

Up to 90 days 90H AT 178,836 175,885
91 to 180 days 91180 H 28,999 29,478
Over 180 days 180 H LA 13,176 26,639
221,011 232,002
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12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 12 BEREZRIARERE @
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade and bills JE U E 5 BR BN N 2= 5 Y R (E B Y B
receivables are as follows: s

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At 1 January »—H—H 51,529 36,337
(Reversal of provision)/provision for impairment 4 (X i i & 5 BR X
of trade and bills receivables recognised EEB&RE
during the year (BefEmm) B (1,136) 18,331
Write-off of provision for impairment of trade  #i$5E W E FEA R ZEH
and bills receivables BB R (14,913) —
Exchange differences [ 5 =58 3,255 (3,139)
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 38,735 51,529
The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been EREEWTERENIIERRR S
included in administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of AGFE2EKRFRANZITEMAX -5t A
comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the allowance account are BERPHRE —MRARESH T WEE
generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering SNIR 4 B EE o

additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the REEEN SRS EERBRINED FXAT#E
fair values of trade and bills receivables disclosed above. ENERESEZINEEN N EE -
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13 AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATED 13 ER—EBE QRNE
COMPANY
The amount represents trade receivables from an associated company. X EAEWW—RBBHEATINE SE
The carrying value of the amount approximates its fair value. The e ZRBZEEEREAFTERSE
amount is mainly denominated in HK$. The credit period granted is 90 ZAEBIXFBENBATHE - BETFTHEEDS
days. The ageing analysis of amount by invoice date is as follows: B0H - RBEZAMMBRERS AT :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
1-30 days 1-30H 3,006 1,281
31-60 days 31-60H 2,107 809
61-90 days 61-90H 1,266 712
Over 90 days 90H KA 1,759 2,373
8,138 5,175
14 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 14 ¢ BARERHEMER
RECEIVABLES MIE
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current: BNES
Deposits b 2,650 2,302
Prepayments IEENE/SE 16,879 12,579
Other receivables H b fE W 18 30,097 18,551
49,626 33,432
Non-current: JEBNER :
Long-term prepayments and deposits (Note) RHETE /I8 Rz @ (M 7F) 44,700 4,272
94,326 37,704
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14 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 14 € FANRERHEMER
RECEIVABLES (continued) IE @)
The fair values of deposits and other receivables are as follows: e REMERFEBOAFEDT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current: EPHR :
Deposits e 2,650 2,302
Other receivables H b FE W SR IR 30,097 18,551
Non-current: JEBNER -
Long-term deposits REZ® 38,383 115
71,130 20,968
Denominated in: RLATEE3E -
— RMB — AR 17,603 7,709
— HK$ — BT 13,683 11,562
— Other currencies —Hp g 39,844 1,697
71,130 20,968
Note: B it
Included in long-term prepayments and deposits, an amount of HK$94,000 (31 REHEMNRENZ S B S 594,000 T
December 2016: HK$220,000) represents prepayment to iBridge Technology (ZZE—XRF+=-A=+—H 220,000/
(Shenzhen) Limited, a joint venture of the Group, arising from purchases of TL)  EEEEHMRBZENAEFTR S LD
information services. Such balances are unsecured in nature, bear no interest ZEBHERBECEI) AR AFTRE %%
and denominated in RMB. EHRHEEBREET THERAAREES
& o
On 21 October 2017, the Group entered into a sale and purchase RZZE—tF+A=-+—HB AEEEBY
agreement (“Agreement”) with independent third parties (“Vendors”) FEZHTEFDRRERARBE—HIARL
in relation to the acquisition of a company and land and properties in T RMEITCEERE (BB R_ZT—
Cambodia. As at 31 December 2017, US$4,900,000 (approximately +tHFE+-_F=+—H AELECREWH=END
HK$38,252,000) were paid to the Vendors according to the Agreement. & 75 2 14,900,000 3 7T (#38,252,0005% 7T,) ©
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15 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSIT 15 EHRITHEXK
As at 31 December 2016, short-term bank deposit of approximately RZE—RF+-_A=+—HBH SHR
HK$68,000 represented bank deposit of the Group with original T1EF 468,000 T (RBEAH BB =18
maturity over three months which are placed as guarantee deposit for Bz AREFRETHER  ZEREBEBDFR
payment of custom duty for goods stored in a warehouse located in ABRES UARERHNEAENSE R
India and the short-term bank deposit is denominated in Indian Rupee. YR MEBRTERADEEL
This arrangement expired and the amount has been released back to AHE) WL HERBE_TE—tF+=
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017. As at 31 B=+—HAULEFERIE BxEFE
December 2017, the Group has short-term bank deposit with original RN FRER - WN_ZT—+FE+ -8
maturity over three months of approximately HK$78,000. —+—HB - AEBERIHAABB=EA
2 52 ERR 1T 17 349 /78,0004 7T ©
16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16 RERBAEEEEE
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cash at banks and on hand WITHEBRERS 262,615 253,601
Short-term bank deposits (original maturities %8 Hi$R 177 3k (R B HA B
of less than three months) LPR=@EA) 105,144 255,015
367,759 508,616
Denominated in: BT ERSE :
— US$ —% 56,463 88,336
— RMB — AR 105,388 67,802
— HK$ — & 153,266 310,565
— Other currencies —Hip g 52,642 41,913
367,759 508,616

The Group's cash and bank balances and short-term bank deposit as at
31 December 2017 amounted to approximately HK$108,237,000 (31
December 2016: HK$86,936,000) and approximately HK$ 1,419,000 (31
December 2016: HK$1,184,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC
and India respectively, where the remittance of funds is subject to
foreign exchange control.

FRERERERER QA

R-TE—+EFE+-_A=+—"0 A&EHE
ZHRENBITHEHUNEHREITERY
108,237,000 L (ZE— A "F+ A=
+ — B : 86,936,000 7t ) & 491,419,000
BT(ZE—R"FE+ZA=+—8:
1,184,000/ 7t) 7 Al iF R B K& BN [E &Y
BIT BELERIINEETHBRR -
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17 RESERVES 17 f@#%
Other reserves H{th & 15
Share-
Statutory based
Merger reserve  compensation Other  Exchange Retained
reserve fund reserve reserves reserves  earnings Total
EE RGO AR
Chilk REe MetE HuoREE ELFEE ®REAEN Fehy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET TERT FAET FTHET THERXT TFTAERT FTAERX
Balance at R-FE-RF
1 January 2016 —A—BN&s 61,510 29,989 31,866 39,349 39,202 226,365 428281
Comprehensive income 2 [ U %
Profit for the year AEE &M — — — — — 157,443 157,443
Other comprehensive EH 2 HEE
loss
Currency translation EBTE
differences =8 — — — — (16,153) —  (16,153)
Realisation of revaluation & [ /& 72 &) B
reserve upon disposal SHER
of a subsidiary f#1B — — — (34,116) — 34,116 —
Total comprehensive 2 E K% /(&)
income/(loss) b — — — (3416 (16,153) 191,559 141,290
Final dividends relatingto —Z—HFE 2
2015 KBRS — — — — — @173 (1173)
Interim dividends relating —Z—REE 2
102016 R 2 — — — — — (142000  (14,200)
Special dividends in 2016 —Z—XF 2
(Note 31) K RIRR B (1 5£31) — - — — —  (144597)  (144,597)
Exercise of share options 77 {5 B& % 4 — — (8,206) — — 8,206 —
Profit appropriation of [/ /R B A F i 15
PRC statutory reserve R BRI D — 3,739 — — — (3,739) —
Balance at R-B-R§
31 December 2016 +=ZA=+—-HW
Fe=3 61,510 33,728 23,660 5,233 23,049 242,421 389,601
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17 RESERVES (continued) 17 %% @
Other reserves (Continued) H {th 3 4% ()
Share-
Statutory based
Merger reserve compensation Other Exchange Retained
reserve fund reserve  reserves  reserves  earnings Total
EE URGXAH
EHtRE e HefEE HttRE EREE RIBA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEXT TFTHERX TR FTHERXT THERXT TFTERT TER
Balance at gl o3
1 January 2017 —B—-BKN&E& 61,510 33,728 23,660 5,233 23,049 242,421 389,601
Comprehensive income % [ I #
Profit for the year AEREHF - — — — — 108923 108,923
Other comprehensive  H {2 [ 3%
income
Currency translation B E
differences =58 - — — — 19,956 — 19,956
Total comprehensive 2 Ut %
income @55 — - — — 19956 108923 128,879
Final dividends relatingto —Z—XFE 2
2016 (Note 31) RIS (H7E31) — — - — — (289300 (28,930)
Interim dividends relating —Z—+¥E 2
to 2017 (Note 31) R S (H7E31) — — — — — (145000  (14,500)
Exercise of share options 17 {5 & A% 1 — — (1,396) — — 1,396 -
Balance at R-Z—-t#§
31 December 2017 +=-A=+—-HHK
Fe3=3 61,510 33,728 22,264 5,233 43,005 309,310 475,050
Representing: RE&:
Reserves i 438,700
Final dividend proposed 3% K Bk &
(Note 31) (Myat31) 36,350
Balance at R-E—-t#&
31 December 2017 +=ZB=+t-8#
g3 475,050

FRERERERER QA
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17 RESERVES (continued)

Other reserves (Continued)

Nature and purposes

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
cost of investment in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share capital
and share premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from the
application of merger accounting in consolidating the financial
information of the affected entities.

Statutory reserve fund

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies are
required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit to the fund until
such fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capital. The
statutory reserve fund can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant
authorities, to offset against accumulated losses or to increase
registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital.

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve is used to recognise the grant
date fair value of options issued to employees but not exercised (Note
18).

Other reserves

During the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2012, certain land and
buildings and leasehold improvements were reclassified from property,
plant and equipment to investment properties due to the change in
usage. Difference between the fair values and net book amounts were
recognised in the revaluation reserve at the date of transfer. As a result
of the disposal of an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Chartered
Properties Limited (“CPL") during the year ended 31 December 2016,
revaluation reserve of its underlying investment properties of
approximately HK$34,116,000 was recycled to retained earnings.
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18 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION

(@) Share options

As at 31 December 2017, 12,134,000 share options (31
December 2016: 14,810,000 share options) were outstanding
and all of them are exercisable (as at 31 December 2016: same).
Among the outstanding share options, 8,167,000 (31 December
2016: 10,743,000), 3,046,000 (31 December 2016: 3,146,000)
and 921,000 (31 December 2016: 921,000) share options will
lapse on 23 June 2019, 9 September 2021 and 4 September
2022, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 2,676,000 share
options (for the year ended 31 December 2016: 18,404,000
share options) were exercised at proceeds of approximately
HK$1,660,000 (for the year ended 31 December 2016:
approximately HK$11,410,000). Share options exercised during
the year ended 31 December 2017 were issued at a weighted
average exercise price of HK$0.62 (2016: HK$0.62) per share.
The related weighted average closing price at the time of exercise
for the year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$1.19 (2016:
HK$1.17) per share.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no share options were
forfeited (for the year ended 31 December 2016: 594,000 share
options).

As all the share options were fully vested, no share-based
payment expense was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2017 (for the year ended 31 December 2016: Nil).

18 LIRS

(a)

FRERERERER QA

B

RZTE—+tF+ZA=+—8"
12,134,00017 BB (= Z — < F
+ = A =+ — H:14,810,0001%
BRE)MATTE BE2BPHAF
TERZZE-—R"F+ZA=+
— B BRA) o £ E R AT AR E
F 8,167,000 ( = & — X F +
— A=+ — 8 :10,743,00019 ) «
3,046,000 (ZZE—R"FE+=-A =
+ — B : 3,146,000 ) 921,000
H(ZE2E—RF+A=+—8":
921,00017) R ED FIR =F — 1
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KA -

HEzE-_ZT—tF+=-A=+—8H
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18 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION
(Continued)

18 U@ XS @)
(a) Share options (Continued) (a) BR#E @
MW ARTTE AR 2 BB K H

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their

related exercise prices are as follows: TEEZFHNT :
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF

Average Number of Average Number of

exercise share exercise share

price in HK$ options price in HK$ options

per share (thousands) per share (thousands)

FHTEE  BREHEA FHTERE ERESE

BRET (F4) FRE T (F)

At 1 January ®n—A—H 0.62 14,810 0.62 33,808
Granted B — — — —
Forfeited o2 — — 0.62 (594)
Exercised 71E 0.62 (2,676) 0.62 (18,404)
Expired 2| HY — — — _
Cancelled T — — — _
At 31 December R+=—B=+—8H 0.62 12,134 0.62 14,810

(b) Shares award (b) 7B

On 23 September 2016, the Company has adopted the Scheme,
to (i) recognise the contributions by employees, directors,
consultants or advisers of or to the Group (the “Eligible Persons”);
and (ii) offer suitable incentives to attract and retain targeted
talent and personnel for the continuance of operations and
future development of the Group. Subject to the rules as set
under the Scheme, the Board may at its absolute discretion to
elect any Eligible Persons to participate in the Scheme (the
“Selected Persons”) and to award the Company’s shares (the
“Awarded Shares”) to these Selected Persons, subject to vesting
conditions, if any. These Awarded Shares will be transferred to
the Selected Persons upon their fulfillment of all relevant vesting
conditions.
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18 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION
(Continued)

18 LU A7 24 B = (a0)

(b) Shares award (Continued)

(b) MR E @

In connection with the implementation of the Scheme, the Group
has signed a trust deed with an independent third party to act as
the trustee (the “Trustee”) to hold certain shares on behalf of the
Group and the Selected Persons before these Awarded Shares are
granted and/or vested. The Group may from time to time instruct
the Trustee to purchase the Company’s shares from the market
on the Stock Exchange and to hold them in trust for the benefit
of the Selected Persons.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 1,010,000 shares (2016:
864,000 shares) were purchased on the Stock Exchange at a
consideration of HK$1,051,000 (2016: HK$1,038,000) by the
Trustee on behalf of the Group. No shares were granted to
Eligible Persons under the Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: same).

HRATAHEME AEEC 8
YFE=ZF(RETRBROERH
R/ EEBAE ERARAEER
BEAIBARERONITA
(EFEAD)BRFTEERE - A%
B AREREEAEBRAT
BSBERRBRD - WABEAL
MNEREKBAEETBERBARD -

HEz—_ZT—+tF+=-A=+—8H
LEFZ 1,010,000 (ZZ — /<4
864,000% ) I& 1 B A X5t AR &
AN EE %MK (E1,051,0008 T (ZF
— 7N 4F 11,038,000 7T) A B 2 AT
BE - #HE_T—+F+_A=1
—BLFE  $EROREER
EERBATEL(ZZE—XRF 4
@) o
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19 SHARE CAPITAL 19 R
Number of
shares HK$'000
BRHHE FHERT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BROMIETHEBER
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, R-ZE—XE—H—H8-
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 —E-R"F¥E+=ZA=+-—-8"
“E—tF-HA—-HBRK
—E—t+t&+=-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRHR
At 1 January 2016 R-ZB—-—XRFE—H—H 705,439,697 7,054
Exercise of share options 7188 B8 A 1 18,404,000 184
At 31 December 2016 R-—E-—XRNE+=-H=+—H 723,843,697 7,238
Exercise of share options [eRtd-diieS 2,676,000 27
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tH&+=-HA=+—H 726,519,697 7,265
20 BORROWINGS 20 B &
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Bank borrowings, secured FHEBZBITEE
Current A EA
— With repayment on demand clause — BAERBREEER 22,170 26,244
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20 BORROWINGS (Continued) 20 EEm
At 31 December 2017, the Group’'s borrowings are denominated in R-ZE—+E+-_A=+—H8 KX&EEH
HK$. The repayment terms of the bank borrowings without taking into WMEETUABTHE AT ETRIZE
account the effect of repayment on demand clause are as follow: SKEEEINEET  FITEENER
BN -

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within 1 year R1ERN 3,921 4,083

Between 1 and 2 years 15225 2 4 3,976 3,977

Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 2 [ 10,168 9,854

Over 5 years HBiB5F 4,105 8,330

22,170 26,244
The weighted average effective interest rate per annum of the Group'’s RZE—t+ER-_E—RNE+=-A=+
borrowings at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are set out as follows: —B - AEEEENNEEHEERERN

REFAT -

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —E—RF

HK$ (Note) &7t (B it) 2.19% 1.97%
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20 BORROWINGS (continued)

Note: In September and October 2015, the Group obtained two HK$
denominated mortgage loans and certain banking facilities, which bore
interest at the higher of 1.7% per annum over one-month HIBOR or the
cost to the bank of funding the facilities, for acquiring certain properties
in Hong Kong. These properties were pledged against the mortgage loans
and certain banking facilities and included in property, plant and
equipment in the consolidated financial statements of the Group, with net
carrying value of HK$52,438,000 as at 31 December 2017 (31 December
2016: HK$54,733,000).

In October 2015, the Group obtained a HK$ denominated loan which
bore interest at 1.7% per annum over one-month HIBOR for its working
capital. The banking facilities were secured by property, plant and
equipment in the consolidated financial statements of the Group, with net
carrying values of approximately HK$3,630,000 as at 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: HK$4,076,000).

Other than the above mentioned, the Group also entered into banking
facilities which were secured by land use rights and property, plant and
equipment with net carrying values of approximately HK$1,820,000 (31
December 2016: HK$1,744,000) and HK$11,086,000 (31 December
2016: HK$12,240,000), respectively as at 31 December 2017.

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its borrowing

facilities during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Interest expenses on borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2017
was approximately HK$613,000 (for the year ended 31 December
2016: HK$905,000).

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their fair values
as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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20 BORROWINGS (Continued) 20 BEum

REER AEERRERVRITRE

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following undrawn

banking facilities: mr
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Floating rate VBRI 2
— Expiring within one year — R —FRE 242,660 235,760
21 TRADE PAYABLES 21 EHESZER
The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is as follows: ENE SRR EEZEDHORE DN
U

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
1-30 days 1230H 218,017 196,712
31-60 days 31£260H 6,632 2,258
61-90 days 61£290H 4,251 1,284
Over 90 days 90H KA 1,630 8,641
230,530 208,895

Denominated in: BEIATEEIE :
— RMB — AR 181,602 156,796
— HK$ — & 12,076 11,499
— US$ — X7 35,016 38,056
— Other currencies — H gk 1,836 2,544
230,530 208,895

FRERERERER QA
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22 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 ErEARHEHMEMNRKIE
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Advance from customers ZEEIENMNI 16,578 18,333
Other payables H b pE S IB 136,461 127,571
Accruals st &R 136,930 117,523
289,969 263,427

The carrying values of these balances approximate their fair values. HEAEGOBEMEBEEEAFERS

23 LOANS FROM NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 23 KRB FIERERZEE

Loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest free and KEFIEREZZ2ERAEER £ 8
repayable on demand. The carrying value of these liabilities approximate FAREXREZE HWEABEMNEREMEH
their fair values. HATEES -

The balances are denominated in HK$. EERLAB TTEHE -
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24 EXPENSES BY NATURE 24 EMEEY 2%
The following expenses/(gains) are included in cost of sales, distribution SFABEERA  DEKRARITHRASTA
costs and administrative expenses: B, (k) P n T -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Changes in inventories (Note 71) FEES(ME11) 1,044,838 900,472
Auditor's remuneration 1% 25 6D BN &
— Audit services — ZBR 2,680 2,600
— Non-audit services — FERHBRHG 761 661
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) -t {55 AR MO B 4H (B 2 6) 1,059 1,068
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment % - WE L ZENITE
(Note 7) (K17t 7) 36,737 36,159
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) B AEMHN (W) 1,564 1,316
Operating lease rental in respect of buildings EBFHLEHREHRS 14,101 17,282
Provision for obsolete inventories (Note 717) PREGFTEMBEIE11) 2,473 10,943
Direct written off of obsolete inventories HEMERERSE
(Note 11) (Btat11) 2,979 5,800
(Reversal of provision)/provision for impairment JEU Z 5 B 3 R Z & 80 RE
of trade and bills receivables (Note 12) (Beisrem) B (Krat12) (1,136) 18,331
Direct written off of trade and bills receivables B ZH#i 5 EK E FEZ R 25 922 257
Employee benefit expenses (Note 26) EBREAMEXZ (F:t26) 378,633 346,582
Transportation expenses B E A 70,985 63,089
Exchange (gain)/loss, net &5 (M a), ki85 (18,594) 12,164
Advertising costs & & B AR 11,885 12,990
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEDE BEMRED
equipment (Note 32(b)) &8 (K12 32(b)) 22 247
Direct operating expenses arising from KEEEHGSWAZREYMEZ
investment properties that generate BEEEEBERX
rental income (Note 8) (K1 a£8) 48 31
Utilities expenses NN 23,024 22,365
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25 OTHER INCOME 25 HAbW A

2017 2016

—E—+tF T -RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET F& T

Rental income (Note 8) e A Hazs) 278 6,848

Income from sales of scrap materials & BERHIRA 1,359 1,301

Gain on disposal and dissolution of subsidiaries & K fi# 8 I B 2 7 2 Y 25 — 11

Others Hity 2,837 4,017

4,474 12,177

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 26 EERARAX

2017 2016

—E—tF —ET-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTEx FE T

Salaries, wages and bonuses e TEREA 343,426 320,229

Pension costs — defined contribution plans BRIRE KA —RER-IETE 1,781 1,428

Welfare and other expenses & FI R EoAth 7 32 33,426 24,925

378,633 346,582

Five highest paid individuals IEBREHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group HE-_Z—+tF+-_A=+—HLF
for the year ended 31 December 2017 include five directors (for the E AEEREERaTMALTBRERS
year ended 31 December 2016: five directors) whose emoluments are EFHE-ZFT-—RFTZA=1+—H
reflected in the analysis shown in Note 36. IEFE: ARES) HFEWE RIE36
FTR o TR Bk e

No emoluments have been paid to the individual or the directors as an HE—_Z—+tH5+-_A=+—HItHF
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for EoAEEUEEENALHERTHET
loss of office for the year ended 31 December 2017 (for the year ended B & DA IR S1 E A0 A AN 5= & 5k fE 7 o0 B R
31 December 2016: Nil). EEZRBpEABERBEEBE_Z—X

FH+-A=1+—HIFE &) -
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27 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS 27 BB WA K B R A
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Finance costs on bank borrowings RITEEZHBAAR (613) (905)
Finance income B 75 A 834 750
Finance income, net B S YR A F B8 221 (155)
28 SUBSIDIARIES 28 KB A T
As at 31 December 2017, the Company had direct and indirect interests RZZE—tF+ZRAR=+—H ARQFH
in the following principal subsidiaries: RTINFERBARIEEEE KHEERE
=

Proportion of ordinary

Proportion of
shares held directly

ordinary shares

Particulars of
issued share

Place of incorporation Principal activities capital/ 5 2 8 B L held by non-
and kind of legal and place of registered by by the controlling
Name of company entity operation capital parent Group interests
BRITRE FERES
A M8 R 3 3t B % TEXBR dAMELA: HESAR HAKE FFEZERZ
DNRAE FREERRR REmEH HE EERRF HEREF 4!
Ming Fai Holdings Limited  British Virgin Islands, Investment holding; Us$100 100% — —
limited liability Hong Kong
company
RAEZBRBR DA KBRS AR 100% 7T 100% — —
BREERA EE
Ming Fai Asia Pacific Hong Kong, Trading of amenity HK$10,000,000 — 100% —
Company Limited limited liability products and
company accessories;
Hong Kong
HEGSAERAF - EEMm&EM 10,000,000/ 7T — 100% —
EREMELRA 25
BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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28 KB 2D 7w

Particulars of
issued share

Proportion of ordinary
shares held directly

Proportion of
ordinary shares

Place of incorporation Principal activities capital/ P 5 5 38 B ) held by non-
and kind of legal and place of registered by by the controlling
Name of company entity operation capital parent Group interests
BRTKRE/ FERES
i 95 TEEKBR AfMELA: HEAR HEAKE FEEERZ
NCIECE FERERER RE I #E HERFE EHEERES £ Bl
Ming Fai Enterprise Hong Kong, Trading of amenity HK$3 — 100% —
International Company limited liability products and
Limited company accessories;
Hong Kong
ABEXBERERAR &HE BB m R 3BT — 100% —
EREAELRA 25
Bk
Ming Fai Industrial The PRC, Manufacturing and  HK$50,000,000 — 100% —
(Shenzhen) limited liability sales of amenity
Company Limited company products and
accessories;
the PRC
AEEZE ORI R SEREEEE 50,000,000 T — 100% —
BRAA BREERQA A dm e B A
i
Quality Amenities Hong Kong, Trading of amenity ~ HK$1,000,000 — 100% —
Supply Limited limited liability products and
company accessories;
Hong Kong
Quality Amenities BE EXMAMREMH 1,000,000 T — 100% —
Supply Limited BREEAR g5
BB

152 Ming Fai International Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

28 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 28 KB L E @

Proportion of ordinary
shares held directly

Particulars of Proportion of

issued share ordinary shares

Place of incorporation Principal activities capital/ P 5 5 98 B held by non-
and kind of legal and place of registered by by the controlling
Name of company entity operation capital parent Group interests
BRTKRE/ FERER
S B L i B TEEER AftELxz HELQAE HEAKE FEEERZ
DNEEE FERERER RE #E HERFE EHEERES £ Bl
Quality Amenities Supply  Singapore, Trading of amenity SG$100,000 — 100% —
Pte. Ltd. limited liability products and
company accessories;
Singapore
Quality Amenities Supply 37 hl 4 - ERHA MR 100,000 7T — 100% —
Pte. Ltd. AREEAR g5
EiiIbd
Everybody Labo Limited Hong Kong, Retailing and HK$2,000,000 — 51% 49%
limited liability trading of
company cosmetics and
skin care
products; Hong
Kong
BREMERADE B TERZEH{btm 2,000,000 7T — 51% 49%
BREERA NS m
BE
Oriental Lotus Hotel India, Manufacturingand ~ Indian Rupee — 51% 49%
Supplies Private Limited limited liability sales of amenity 38,300,530
(previously known as company products and
"Telefield (Hotel accessories;
Supplies) Private India
Limited”)
Oriental Lotus Hotel Supplies /& - HERHEEER 38,300,530 — 51% 49%
Private Limited (] BREEATA F o R Bl 1 HEEL
[Telefield (Hotel Supplies) HE
Private Limited |)
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29 INCOME TAX EXPENSES 29 FRBBAX
The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated Rigdemlaz RN (BE) e
statement of comprehensive income represents: MeREE:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current income tax: BNHAFT 1S A -
— Hong Kong profits tax —BEFNER 17,551 16,753
— PRC enterprise income tax — R ERER 17,867 24,388
— Singapore income tax — I TSR 656 839
Adjustments in respect of prior year BEFERE (2,062) (1,499)
34,012 40,481
Deferred income tax (Note 10) RIEFTBR (M3 10) 396 1,874
34,408 42,355
Taxation has been provided at the appropriate rates prevailing in the MENEAERREMERKBRANE
countries in which the Group operates. AR RETIREH -
Hong Kong profits tax, PRC enterprise income tax and Singapore EBMEH PR ESR &N
income tax are calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%), 25% (2016: 25%) 8 nEREE-_ZE—tF+=A=
and 17% (2016: 17%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year +— H It FE G5 EF %R o R A
ended 31 December 2017 respectively. 16.5% (- F — /N F :16.5%)  25% (=

T —RNF125%) R17% (=T —XF

17%)zH& -
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29 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 29 FIBHBEXZw®W
The difference between the actual income tax charged to the SEPEKRSZRTEEMMEH X H BT
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the amounts 24 S F R gh R 5T AT 15 B R A 5T %% BT
which would result from applying the enacted tax rates to profit before BeBmyEEEENT

income tax can be reconciled as follows:

2017 2016
—E—t#& —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before income tax RETFT 15 B A& 7 143,248 191,439
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to %3 F3 FA & 1 B %X &Y 3 F1 89
profits in the respective countries B EGTE RN IE 27,553 33,906
Income not subject to tax /R R UL A (3.391) (14,839)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes A MM IBER A 7,882 16,277
Utilisation of prior year tax losses PRABAFEZHBER (293) (160)
Adjustments in respect of prior year BEFERHE (2,062) (1,499)
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset 7~ 34 fE 32 4% 3E P 15 5 & B Y
was recognised HIBEE 4,719 8,670
Tax charge FIE S 34,408 42,355
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 19% per annum for the REBEZ-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILHF
year ended 31 December 2017 (for the year ended 31 December 2016: EHMEFHBERMNERETF19% (#
18% per annum). The change is caused by a change in the profitability E_E—XE+_A=+—BHILFE:
of the Group's subsidiaries in respective countries. FF18%) o Fi Rk & Ty A & A %= E [ B

RARERBBARNEN RN E -
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29 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 29 FIBHBEXZw@W
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward EREFTEREEEEHEBREF A
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the FBAKREEN SN EE Mg E 2
future taxation profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax MEEEBEER R_ZE—tF+=H
losses of approximately HK$176,928,000 (31 December 2016: Zt—H AEEZABIAHBEEBEY
HK$185,255,000) as at 31 December 2017 to offset against future /5176,928,0008 T(ZZE — R F+ = A
taxable income. These tax losses expire in the following years: =—+—H :185,255,000/8 7T) * A & 5 &
RIERBWA o L EFIEE B KR T
FHE W
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
In the first to fifth years inclusive E—FEFRF
(RIEEEME) 127,966 136,635
No expiry date i = m B ER 48,962 48,620
176,928 185,255
30 EARNINGS PER SHARE 30 BERER
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company KAGHEEANEGERERNEF
is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the AR R B9 A A FEAE & M) BR DA 5
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in NERTEERERMETLHEEE -

issue during the year.

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
Profit attributable to owners of the Company &7 & B A & 15 % 7
(HK$'000) (F&T) 108,923 157,443
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 277 & 3@ A% hn4E F 5 &
in issue (thousands) (F1%) 723,696 708,509
Basic earnings per share attributable to EKATEEANEML
owners of the Company (HK cents) BREARZFRN GEWL) 15.1 22.2
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30 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 30 8REF @
(b) Diluted (b) #%
Diluted earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company KATBEAREGLGSREEET
is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of DWEBEMEABENEE L AR
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive R RE - AR EITE BRI
potential ordinary shares. The Company has share options as BEHHGTE - ARR 2 EREE
dilutive potential shares. A calculation was done to determine the AEERNEBEERD - sTEHEAR
number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value B R ITE BB R BT B A0 SR BE A
(determined as the average annual market price of the shares) HMEEEBE BT AFEESE
based on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached EBROOFEHE2FEMSER) /B
to the outstanding share options. The number of shares ABRMDEE - IR A RFFED
calculated as above was compared with the number of shares HEE  ERERBIREETEMm
that would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share EEITHORMODEBBEERHLE -
options.
2017 2016
—E—+F —T-RF

Profit attributable to owners of the Company 7K A &% A A FE 15 & F
(HK$'000) (F&mT) 108,923 157,443

Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 217 & i@ i% #9 hn

in issue (thousands) EHE(TIR) 723,696 708,509
Adjustment for: FE
— Share options (thousands) — AR (T 7)) 5,984 10,576

Weighted average number of ordinary shares P& 858 B R @I A
for diluted earnings per share (thousands) InkE 8 (FR%) 729,680 719,085

Diluted earnings per share attributable to 7~ T & A FE{h
owners of the Company (HK cents) SREFEEF CGEAWL) 14.9 21.9
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31 DIVIDENDS

On 16 December 2016, a special dividend of HK20.0 cents per share
was approved by the Board. Total dividend of approximately
HK$144,769,000 was paid out, including dividend paid to the shares
held for the Scheme.

On 25 May 2017, a final dividend of HK4.0 cents per share for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was approved by the Company’s
shareholders. Total dividend of approximately HK$29,005,000 was paid
out, including dividend paid to the shares held for the Scheme.

On 29 August 2017, the Board resolved to approve an interim dividend
of HK2.0 cents per share for the six months ended 30 June 2017. Total
dividend of approximately HK$14,531,000 was paid out, including
dividend paid to the shares held for the Scheme.

The final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 of
HK5.0 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend of approximately
HK$36,350,000 was resolved by the Board to propose on 28 March
2018, which is subject to approval at the annual general meeting to be
held on 30 May 2018 (the “AGM"). This proposed dividend is not
reflected as a dividend payable in the consolidated financial statements,
but reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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32 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 32 RERETRERME
CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax for (a) F W K5 P8 B A& F B
the year to cash generated from operations REXEBBESNER
2017 2016
—E-+tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Profit before income tax RETFTEH AR 7 143,248 191,439
Adjustments for: EYEH TH A%
— Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) — Tt {FE RSN (Fe) 1,059 1,068
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment —WE BERREITE
(Note 7) (Ftat7) 36,737 36,159
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) —EBREERE(MT9) 1,564 1,316
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and —HENE BEREEN
equipment (Note 32(b)) & 18 (M 37 32(b)) 22 247
— Finance income (Note 27) — BB (M at27) (834) (750)
— Finance costs (Note 27) — BB AR (M et 27) 613 905
— Provision for obsolete inventories (Note 71) —REGFEMEEMT11) 2,473 10,943
— Direct written off of obsolete inventories —EEMBERERE
(Note 11) (tatt1) 2,979 5,800
— (Reversal of provision)/provision for impairment —RBRE SRR REERNRE
of trade and bills receivables (Note 12) (B BRE),BitE
(Hfzt12) (1,136) 18,331
— Direct written off of trade and bill —EEMBERE SHERR
receivables B 922 257
— Amortisation of incentive — SRE 5 — 2,381
— Share of profit of an associated company —Eh—EEE AR (1,344) (1,476)
— Share of profit of joint ventures —EEEEERA (2) (1
— Fair value gains on investment properties —REME L N TFERE
(Note 8) (Ht78) — (66,996)
— Gain on disposal and dissolution of subsidiaries —HE RN B DR 2 W
(Note 25) (Hf5t25) — (1)
— Provision for impairment of other receivables —E N ERERE - 1,002
Changes in working capital: 2EESE
— Inventories —GFE (16,488) (54,894)
— Trade and bills receivables —EREZETRER (32,011) (85,065)
— Deposits, prepayments and —&e BENREREMEK
other receivables HIE (20,190) 10,791
— Trade payables —ENEZERN 6,941 (18,956)
— Accruals and other payables —JEFT B R K& H A B 5B 8,809 (10,771)
— Amount due from an associated company — W — S AR R (2,963) 3,452
— Amount due from a joint venture —Eh—HEEERENE (5) (33)
Cash generated from operations REEBMENERS 130,394 45,128
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32 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 32 RERERERMET @
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and b) HEVE BMERSKEFRN
equipment B#sRE
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from REEREeRERTP LEWE -
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: BERZEMEHREBEEIE:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE R AT
Net book amount: BREFE :
— Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) —¥1% - BB & & (F177) 520 5,042
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BELREZ
equipment (Note 24) & 18 (Hf 7t 24) (22) (247)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant LEWE BEKREKE
and equipment Fr 18 318 498

4,795

160 Ming Fai International Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR M AE (4R)

32 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 32 RERERERMET @

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Net cash inflow arising from disposal of a () LENBLARAFMEEXZHE
subsidiary ERANFEH
On 29 August 2016, the Group has signed a sales and purchase RZZE—R"ENA-_+NB A&
agreement (the “Agreement”) with Target Insurance Company (the CDEFMREEEARTE S
“Purchaser”), to dispose of the entire share capital of CPL and HEEm=(mE])  WHEE
related shareholder’s loan at a consideration of HK$263,000,000. HEE AR ALEEARREER
HK$20,004,000 of the consideration was used to settle the = KRB A263,000,0005 7T - A%
outstanding borrowing of CPL on the date of completion. Net Ak H 2 - 20,004,0008 LI B 2
assets of CPL being disposed of amounted to approximately FAIEEERTFEEXEZAKREERE
HK$259,500,000. As a result of the disposal, a gain of B-FTHENBTEEXEEFAEY
HK$11,000 was recognised by the Group. #259,500,000% 7T ° B3 1 #% 18 B

€ AREERERIZE11,0008 7T -

2016
A
HK$'000
T T
Cash consideration received B IR & R (E 263,000
Net assets disposed of: FTEmEEFE :
— Investment properties —REWME 260,000
— Other receivables — H b FRIA 229
— Deferred tax liabilities —IEERIBEE (729)
3,500
Transaction costs incurred FREE 2R S A (3,489)
Gain on disposal & W 1
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of ~ H& — MM B AR FELZ
a subsidiary RERAFHE
— Cash and cash equivalent received —BWHmBEEEREEMEIER 263,000
— Transaction costs paid —BRRZHAR (3,489)
259,511
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32 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

32 ZEBRERERMT @

(d) Net debt reconciliation

(d FEEZHK

Liabilities from financing

activities
REMEETHEE
Cash and Borrowings Borrowings Loan from
cash due within  due after non-controlling
equivalents 1year 1year interests Total
ReRkBEE 1FRIYE 15£3H FERES
£EHEAR WEE HEE HE = et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FTERT FET FET TER
Net debt as at R-ZE—XRE
1 January 2016 -A-BZFERE 295,693 (10,446) (45,532) (12,587) 227,128
Cash flows Rene 216,378 6,363 23,371 (1,005) 245,107
Foreign exchange HNE
adjustments HE (3,455) — — — (3,455)
Net debt as at R=—ZE-XF+=8
31December2016 =t—HZE&E 508,616 (4,083) (22,161) (13,592) 468,780
Cash flows Heke (149,790) 162 3,912 (900) (146,616)
Foreign exchange HNE
adjustments A 8,933 — — — 8,933
Net debt as at R=—ZE—-tF+=A
31 December 2017 =+—-BZzFEE 367,759 (3,921) (18,249) (14,492) 331,097
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33 COMMITMENTS 33 A&iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAXREIE
As at 31 December 2017, the capital commitments of the Group R-_Z—+HFE+-_A=+—H K
were approximately HK$24,810,000 (2016: HK$4,317,000). & [ 1) & AR HE 4 5 24,810,0008

TT(ZZ— /X4 : 4,317,000 7T) °

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Contracted but not provided for in the KETHME L R ER A B TS
consolidated financial statements HE N 24,810 4,317
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) EEHREFRIE
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- BETITHELERE AR
cancellable operating leases of the Group are as follows: AR EREREMIEENT -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE R AT
No later than one year —F R 11,392 10,000
Later than one year and no later than five years B — {8 TBA 1L F 7,186 10,659
18,578 20,659
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and

operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are i

subject to common control.

The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Mr. CHING Chi Fai,
Mr. CHING Chi Keung, Mr. LIU Zigang and Ms. CHAN Yim Ching.

(a) Significant related party transactions

9 Bt

The Group has carried out significant transactions with the

following related parties:

Name of related party

Principal business activities

3 ARG

il (] — T REfEHI 5 — 7 R E MK
MEBERARETTREAZEN BRH

c RE|KREGNE BT TR S

AEBZEEERDR/EEELLE B
TRELE B FMEERRYBRLL -

(a) EXBABA RS

A RO TR E T EA
%5

Relationship with the Group

MBI E A8 TEXEBEH HAKEZER

Mr. LIU Zigang Not applicable A shareholder and an executive
Director of the Company

21F M %k & 58 A KRR —HURRFRTES

Ming Fai Plastic Industrial Company

RIELBEXQA

Quality Amenities Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Quality Amenities Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd.

iBridge Technology (Shenzhen) Limited

(“ibridge Technology”)
BRI CRINDBR AR
(TREE R

Manufacturing of plastic products
(Ceased manufacturing of plastic
products since April 2003)

mARKIEEIEBRBER

Trading of hotel amenities and
accessories

BEEERRREHES

Provision of information technology
services

REEAR RS

Partnership owned by Mr. CHING
Chi Fai (a shareholder and an
executive Director of the
Company), Mr. YEUNG Tin Loi
and Mr. CHING Chi Keung
(a shareholder and an executive
Director of the Company)

mELEEE (KRG 22—
BRFEWITESE)  HRKEE
RiEEwEE (KRR Z—
REFNITES)MERD
aRhE

Associated company of the Group

AEEMEE QA

Joint venture of the Group

AEEMAREDLE
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 BEEARE @)
(a) Significant related party transactions (Continued) Q) EXBBLEXRS @
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated GCREAMERREMI D ATHE
financial statements, the Group had the following significant BEIN ASEEBAE STHETHNE
transactions with related parties: AZSWT :
2017 2016
—E—+tHFE Z—ZE—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
(i) Sales of goods (i) HEEm
— to Quality Amenities — T Quality Amenities
Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd. Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd. 19,817 11,429
— to iBridge Technology —TREEEHERE 123 —
(i) Purchase of goods (i) BEE M
— from iBridge Technology —BREETRE 182 —
(iii) Rental charged (iiy TAEHWEAHES
— by Ming Fai Plastic Industrial Company —HERREENA 844 851
— by Mr. LIU Zigang — BF [l %k £ — 64
(iv) Purchases of services rendered from (v BETAS T RENRS
— freight and administrative charges — Quiality Amenities
from Quality Amenities Supply (M) Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd.
Sdn. Bhd. ZEEBRITHE — 31
— information technology services —EBEARERE
rendered from iBridge Technology BRI R % 1M1 304
(v) Purchase of intangible assets () BEEFEEE
— software from iBridge Technology —BRBEMENEN 158 —
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 BEtEARS @

(a) EXRBEEBAIRXRS W@w)

(a) Significant related party transactions (Continued)

Sales of goods are transacted at prices mutually agreed between
the parties.

Purchases of goods and services are transacted at prices mutually
agreed between the parties.

The Group leased certain properties from Ming Fai Plastic
Industrial Company as one of its production bases in the PRC.
The transaction is carried out at prices agreed between the
parties.

The Group leased one office premise in the PRC from Mr. LIU
Zigang. The transaction is carried out at prices as agreed between
the parties.

Purchase of intangible assets are transacted at prices mutually
agreed between the parties.
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 BEEARE @)
(b) Key management compensation (b) TEEEAE#ME
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Basic salaries, housing allowances, K& EFE2MN - HMEMK
other allowances and benefits-in-kind e EFEE 10,329 9,808
Contributions to pension plans RIKEFT B R 115 115
10,444 9,923
(c) Year end balances arising from sales and ) HEKNBEERMNER
purchases of goods i ER
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Prepayment to iBridge Technology (Note) T B S R RIE (Y 5E) 94 220
Amounts due from FEULIA T & 5 ;B
— Quiality Amenities Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd. — Quality Amenities Supply (M)
(Note 13) Sdn. Bhd. (H77%13) 8,138 5,175
— iBridge Technology (Note) — BET R (M) 59 54
Note: The balance represents prepayment to iBridge Technology of Wt e EEARKZEMNRABER
HK$94,000 (31 December 2016: HK$220,000) arising from R TE,0008 T (ZE—E+=-A
purchases of information services and amount due from it of =+—H :220,000 ) & EL BiEH
HK$59,000 (31 December 2016: HK$54,000). These balances are BRI IES9,0008 T (Z T —RF+=
unsecured in nature, bear no interest and denominated in RMB. B=-+—H :54,000&70) o Ik 641

EEEER THERRAR®BHE:-

AEREEERERAR —T—+FF% 16/



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 35 KRR EEEBREHEE
OF THE COMPANY -
Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2017 NR—_TBE—-—+ttHE+=-B=+—H
ZEARBEEEBER
2017 2016
—E—t —E-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Ktz THER FAT
ASSETS &E
Non-current asset *RBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EHRBRRAMNEE 235,673 235,673
Total non-current assets FRBDEELH 235,673 235,673
Current assets REEE
Amount due from a joint venture U —HEEE .I/J:\ % FA 12 10
Amounts due from subsidiaries KK BAR 719,628 772,913
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 1% ~ F8 /14 /TAIE&E‘@FEH&ZMIE 231 242
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRE&EEEE 74,525 34,653
Total current assets REBEEAR 794,396 807,818
Total assets EEHAE 1,030,069 1,043,491
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to the owners of the ~ AT HH AEIEREZ
Company
Share capital P AR 7,265 7,238
Shares held for the Scheme FEITER 2 KL (2,089) (1,038)
Share premium %0 % B 608,538 606,905
Other reserves HitfEE A 405,941 275,642
Total equity R 1,019,655 888,747
LIABILITIES b
Current liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE B B X A 3R TE 9,119 9,139
Tax payable JERiE 146 121
Accruals and other payables BB R REMENKE 1,047 809
Dividends payable JERTRR B 102 144,675
Total current liabilities RBAEEE 10,414 154,744
Total liabilities BELEE 10,414 154,744
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 1,030,069 1,043,491
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of AKANBBEABERN_-_ZE—NF=A

Directors on 28 March 2018 and was signed on its behalf.

CHING Chi Fai
BEE
Director

BE

Note A: Reserve movement of the Company for the year ended

31 December 2017.

rEE

CHING Tsun Wah
BhE

Director

BF

WA BE_ZF—

“HN\BEREESHETHUATEER

tF+-A=+—H1

FREZARFEERD -
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35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 35 AARIEEEBREHEE
OF THE COMPANY (Continued) @ Eb (4&)

Merger Share-based

reserve  compensation Retained
(Note) reserve earnings Total
aotEE  URGXZEM
(Kizz) MemE REEF #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FExT FHET
Balance at 1 January 2016 R-IE—-XKE
—R—BZ&& 224,147 35,424 26,368 285,939
Comprehensive income 2HKE
Profit for the year REE 5 F — — 169,673 169,673
Total comprehensive income 2 [ Y &5 42 48 — — 169,673 169,673
Final dividends relating t0 2015 —ZE—FHEE 7 REKE — — (21,173) (21,173)
Interim dividends relating to 2016 —Z — /X F € 2 F EiE & — — (14,200) (14,200)
Special dividend relating to 2016 =& — N4 2 ¥ FIi &

(Note 31) (Hfe£31) (144,597) (144,597)
Exercise of share options 1T15 B i A — (1,696) 1,696 —
Balance at 31 December 2016 R =T — R F

+-RA=+—-Rz#&# 224,147 33,728 17,767 275,642
Balance at 1 January 2017 R=-B—+t&

—RA—BR#&H 224,147 33,728 17,767 275,642
Comprehensive income 2HEWE
Profit for the year A A — — 173,729 173,729
Total comprehensive income 2 T U 3% 44 58 — — 173,729 173,729
Final dividends relating to 2016 —Z—/NFE Z KEKE

(Note 31) (Hfe£31) — — (28,930) (28,930)
Interim dividends relating to 2017 =& — 4+ & 7 f HI % &,

(Note 31) (H7£31) — — (14,500) (14,500)
Exercise of share options 1T{E BB AR — (1,396) 1,396 —
Balance at 31 December 2017 R=Z—+F

+t-A=t—-Hz#&&% 224,147 32,332 149,462 405,941
Representing: R&:
Reserve & 369,591
Final dividend proposed BERHRE 36,350
Balance at 31 December 2017 RA=Z—+ &

tZA=t-BZ&& 405,941
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35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 35 APRIEEEBREHEE

OF THE COMPANY (Continued) 28 @
Note: Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the cost M - AEBBNEMHEEERNERRNEK
of investment in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share capital and BRARBRAEBEEMBAGN-Z
share premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from the application of TLFAHIFETREUEER R
merger accounting in consolidating the financial information of the AAMESEIMEANBRMNEENE
affected entities. o
36 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 36 EENRFTETHRAEZHE
EMOLUMENTS
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/payable to Directors of the REFBDN/ TENAKATESHHNS
Company by the Group are as follows: WEENT ¢
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Fees e 1,320 1,322
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other K& - EFE 2R 2R
allowances and benefits-in-kind g ERNE 9,969 9,689
Contributions to pension plans RIS ET AR 115 115
11,404 11,126
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36 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 36 EERFETHABZHME
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (%)
The emoluments of each Director and chief executive of the Company HEz-_Z2—+F+-_A=+—HItFEE
for the year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows: ARAISEFRFTETHRAENMNE
mE
Employer’s
Share-based contribution to
Discretionary payment a retirement
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses expense benefit scheme Total

RSB  EEREK
B R i

3.3 ik i BERA k3 #®R an
HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Executive Directors (Note (i) 117 &= (K (i)

Mr. CHING Chi Fai BEBEE 120 1,224 1,201 — 18 2,563
Mr. CHING Chi Keung 2EBLAE 120 739 743 — 18 1,620
Mr. LU Zigang 2TRILE 120 896 1,003 — 43 2,062
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BEELE 120 739 753 — 18 1,630
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung EE R 120 1,325 1,106 — 18 2,569

Independent non-executive BIFHTES

Directors
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan ~ FLi83t % 4 150 — - — - 150
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace SRELE 150 — - - - 150
Mr. NG Bo Kwong REAEE 150 - — - - 150
Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric BEmLE

(Note (i) (W& (i) 150 - - - - 150
Non-executive Director FHUTES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching BReEzL+ 120 240 — — — 360
Total % 1320 5,163 4,806 - 15 11,404
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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36 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 36 EERFTETHRAEZHME
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (%)
The emoluments of each Director and chief executive of the Company Bz XRNFt+-_A=+—BItEE
for the year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows: ARAIBSEFRFTETHRAENHE
m -
Employer's
Share-based  contribution to
Discretionary payment a retirement
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses expense  benefit scheme Total

Ay BERERK
SRR R )

BEEML e ¥ HEEA f % HR wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THET TET THET THET

Executive Directors (Note (i)) ${TE %= (Kf:(i)

Mr. CHING Chi Fai SEELE 120 1,204 1,161 — 18 2,503
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BEets 120 726 681 — 18 1,545
Mr. LIU Zigang 2R EE 120 885 805 — 43 1,853
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BieELE 120 726 674 — 18 1,538
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEESE 120 1,304 1,042 - 18 2,484
Independent non-executive BIYFHTEE
Directors
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan 7L 883t 5 4 150 - - - — 150
Mr.MA Chun Fung Horace ~ BiRIE %4 150 - — - — 150
Mr. NG Bo Kwong RRKXEE 150 - — - — 150
Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric BRERE
(Note (ii)) (B £ (i) 114 — — — _ 114
Mr. SUN Kai Lit Cliff BRI
(Note (i) (B i) 38 _ _ _ _ 38
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching BREE R+ 120 330 150 — — 600
Total ek 1,322 5175 4513 — 115 11,125
Notes: Biat -
(i) The roles of chief executive officer have been performed collectively by all (i) THRESZBERIEHTES (B
the executive directors, including the chairman of the Company. RATEE)RRBIT -
(ii) Mr. SUN Yung Tson Eric was appointed as an independent non-executive (ii) FEBELAR-_ZE—XNE=A=-1+hB
Director on 29 March 2016. EEZTAEBIIERTES -
(i) Mr. SUN Kai Lit Cliff retired as an independent non-executive Director on (i) BRAUEER—_Z—XR"F=ZA=-+ANH
29 March 2016. REBIUIFEMITES -
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